
1 

 AGENDA 
Mason Transit Authority Board 

Regular Meeting 
November 17, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 

Mason Transit Authority 
MTA Transit-Community Center 

Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
OR 

Pursuant to Governor’s Proclamation 20-28.8, the public 
meeting held virtually using the follow ing WebEx credentials 

To join by phone: 1-408-418-9388 
Meeting number (access code): 126 143 9816 (Password) 0790 

Mason County is currently in Phase 3, therefore members of the public 
may also attend in person. 

OPENING PROTOCOL 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

PUBLIC COMMENT – Limit of five (5) minutes per person  

CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 
1. Pg. 003: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the October 20, 2020

 MTA regular Board meeting. 
2. Pg. 007: Financial Reports: October, 2020
3. Pg. 014: Check Approval: October 15 – November 12, 2020

REGULAR AGENDA 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 019: Second View of 2021 Budget – DISCUSSION – (Danette and LeeAnn)
2. Pg. 025: Second View of 2021 Regular Meeting Calendar – Resolution No. 2020-35 –

  ACTIONABLE – (Tracy) 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 030: Surplus Inventory - Resolution No. 2020-36 – ACTIONABLE (LeeAnn)
2. Pg. 034: Records Management Policy (POL-206) - Resolution No. 2020-37 – ACTIONABLE –  

 (Tracy) 
3. Pg. 047: Performance Counseling Policy (POL-304) - Resolution No. 2020-38 – ACTIONABLE 

- (LeeAnn)
4. Pg. 058: Special Event Service Policy (POL-503) - Resolution No. 2020-39 – ACTIONABLE –  

 (Mike R.) 
5. Pg. 071: Volunteer Driver Policy (POL-1000) - Resolution No. 2020-40 – ACTIONABLE –  

 (LeeAnn) 
6. Pg. 124: Contract for Public Relations - Resolution No. 2020-41 – ACTIONABLE - (Danette)

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 1



2 

INFORMATIONAL 
Reports 

1. Pg. 158: Park and Ride Update
2. Pg. 159: Management Reports
3. Pg. 168: Operational Statistics 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

COMMENTS BY BOARD 

ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Proposed 2021 Budget 
MTA Transit-Community Center 

Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
Tuesday, December 1, 2020 

4:00PM  

MTA Board Meeting 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

December 15, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center Conference Room 

601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any type 
of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 in 
advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 2



1 

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
October 20, 2020 
Port of Allyn 
18560 E State Route 3 
Allyn 
Pursuant to Governor’s Proclamation 20-28.8, the 
public meeting was held virtually using WebEx 
with the public being able to attend in listen-only mode 
as well as in person. 

OPENING PROTOCOL 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Wes Martin, Chair; Sharon Trask, Vice Chair; 
John Campbell, Kevin Dorcy, Matt Jewett, Randy Neatherlin, Kevin Shutty and 
Sandy Tarzwell. Quorum met, Randy Neatherlin attended in person and all other 
named Board members were present via WebEx virtual conference. 

Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: [Vacant Position through 
remainder of 2020]. 

Authority Non-voting Board Member Not Present: Greg Heidal, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 

Citizen Advisor to the Board Present in Person: John Piety 

Others Present in Person: Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

Others Present via WebEx virtual conference: Danette Brannin, General Manager, 
LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager; Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities 
Manager; and Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager. 

Others Present via WebEx virtual conference: 
Robert Johnson, MTA Legal Counsel; Elizabeth Safsten, WSDOT liaison. 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 

Moved that the agenda for the October 20, 2020 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board 
meeting be approved. Campbell/Trask. Motion carried. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 

1. Moved to approve the minutes of the MTA regular Board meeting of September 15,
2020.

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 3



2 

 

               

2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for 
September, 2020 as presented. 

 
3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of 

September 12, 2020 through October 14, 2020 financial obligations on checks #34493 
through #34594, as presented for a total of $719,120.99. 

 
Campbell/Neatherlin. Motion carried. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS [None] 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. First View of 2021 Budget – LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager, shared 

highlights of the preparation of the 2021 budget, such as: 
a. MTA continues to be conservative on sales tax revenue. While it has been higher 

than normal, MTA is not anticipating that it will continue to be sustainable. 
b. The revenue perspective is mostly based on the second period of the biennium. 
c. Any excess sales tax revenue will be contributed toward grant revenue. 
d. If sales tax is above budget, that excess amount will be placed into reserves. 
e. Funds have been set aside for professional and technical services funds for public 

relations being outsourced with the recent retirement of Kathy Geist. 
f. Staffing in the amount of $60,000 has been set aside, which may eventually be 

moved to wages. 
g. Safety supplies are due to COVID-19 which are soft supplies. 

 
The Board Chair inquired about unemployment insurance not being charged. Ms. McNulty 
responded that if there are continued reductions, the budget is structured for worst case 
scenario. 
 
Board member Tarzwell asked if enough money was set aside for the costs. Operations 
Manager, Mike Ringgenberg, indicated that $20,000 has been spent on masks which are 
anticipated to last approximately 6 months to a year. Currently MTA is going through 600 
masks a week.  

 
2. First View of 2021 Regular Meeting Calendar – Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Authority 

Board, indicated that this annual matter was being brought to the Board for discussion. 
Given the COVID-19 environment, she was looking for feedback as to whether or not the 
Board would like to have all Board meetings at T-CC during the pandemic, or the remote 
locations of Hoodsport and Port of Allyn. The Board would like to hold one meeting in 
Hoodsport and another in Allyn. The Clerk will inquire as to availabilities for the months of 
April and October and bring the matter to the Board in November.  

 
3. Surplus vehicles – Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager, explained to the 

Board that MTA has six (6) coaches that have exceeded their useful life and are ready for 
surplus. He indicated that the approximate value of each bus is $2,500. Once they are 
declared surplus, he will check with other transit agencies to see if they would like to 
purchase them. After that outreach, any coaches remaining shall be auctioned. The 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 4



3 

 

               

Board Chair asked why Vehicle 806 was being surplused when it had fewer miles. Mr. Krier 
shared that the 806 is an older bus, it is difficult to get parts and it has corrosion issues as it 
spends much time parked near Kitsap Transit where it is exposed to elements of being near 
the saltwater. It is made of older diesel technology, so the fuel mileage and exhaust is not 
the best. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-32 
declaring and approving the surplus and disposal of the vehicles as set forth therein. 
Campbell/Shutty. Motion carried. 

 
4. Public Comment Using WebEx – Danette Brannin, MTA’s General Manager, shared with 

the Board that MTA had been contacted by a citizen requesting that citizens should be able 
to make verbal public comments in the Board meeting during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Legal Counsel indicated that public comment is only required for public hearings, but not for 
Board meetings. Legal Counsel also stated that it is good public policy to provide an 
opportunity for citizens to make comments and by dialing in by telephone, not by video. The 
Board Chair asked if any Board members were against having the public comment returned 
to the agenda, to which there was no reply. This is a no action item and the Board Chair 
instructed the Clerk to add the public comment back into the agenda.  

 
5. Second Amendment to WSDOT Agreement PTD0044 – Ms. Brannin shared with the 

Board that MTA received notice of the Sales Tax Equalization formula award from WSDOT. 
Staff will be allocating $1,601,895 to operating for 2021-2023, as captured by Consolidated 
Grant Agreement PTD0044. These Sales Tax Equalization funds do not require a match. 
Board member Tarzwell requested clarification of the agreements, which Ms. Brannin 
provided. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-33 
that approves the Second Amendment to Agreement PTD0044 between WSDOT and MTA 
and authorizes the General Manager to sign that Second Amendment.  Trask/Campbell. 
Motion carried. 

 
6. First Amendment to WSDOT Agreement PTD0081 – Ms. Brannin explained that with 

the $153,950 remaining of the total amount of Sales Tax Equalization funds, these would be 
used for the capital purchases to purchase a mini cutaway, scissor lift and roof for the 
Radich building. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 
2020-34 that approves the First Amendment to Agreement PTD0081 between WSDOT and 
MTA and authorizes the General Manager to sign that First Amendment. Jewett/Campbell. 
Motion carried. 

 
7. Consolidated Grant Application – Ms. Brannin is requesting approval to submit a grant 

application through the WSDOT Consolidated Grant Program for 2021-2023 to secure 
funding for purchasing a 35’ coach and six cutaways to replace vehicles that are beyond 
their useful life. A 25% match of $317.381 is proposed. Board member Tarzwell asked if the 
35’ bus was a traditional bus. Mr. Krier responded that it is a conventional diesel/biodiesel 
with clean technology. The six cutaways are automotive gas engines. Ms. Brannin shared 
that MTA does not need to submit an operating grant, as the last operating grant application 
submitted by MTA was for a four-year period. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority 
Board approve the General Manager to submit a grant application for vehicles to the 
Washington State Department of Transportation Public Transportation Division. 
Campbell/Shutty. Motion carried. 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 5



4 

 

               

8. Operations and Maintenance Board Subcommittee Report. Ms. Brannin explained the 
events that have led to a T-CC tenant moving to the Johns Prairie base and the 
Administration offices moving to the Transit-Community Center. She also said that it 
provided MTA with the opportunity to streamline more of the operations and administration 
teams, as well as providing the drivers access to speak with administration staff when on 
their break. The move to Johns Prairie provides a rent amount in line with what the tenant 
can afford as well as the cost savings to MTA of staffing only one facility. Staff has 
previously considered and explored other options, but it would cost more money to remodel 
existing space or pay the cost of constructing a new building. The committee recommended 
moving forward with the Admin move to the T-CC and leasing the JP space to the tenant. 
Board member Tarzwell inquired as to who at MTA will be remaining at the Johns Prairie 
base. The remaining staff will be the Facilities and Maintenance group, IT, one dispatcher, 
from time to time and the Operations Manager. 

 
INFORMATIONAL – Ms. Brannin provided an overview of the status of the various park and 
ride projects. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Ms. Brannin informed the Board that I-695 was overturned 
and that she will be part of a legislative group to explore ways to protect transit funding from 
initiatives. She will be working with a lobbyist with WSTA. 
 
MANAGEMENT REPORT – Ms. Brannin reported that MTA received four bids for public 
relations. One of the bidders, JayRay, has worked with other transits on transit promotional 
projects. Additionally, she spoke of paying for a feasibility study for parking in Allyn and 
Hoodsport. The feasibility study will explore what the need is and land availability. Board 
member Neatherlin voiced that he would rather set up a committee to explore, share ideas and 
look at leasing land, rather than purchasing it, as well as look at what the costs would be. 
 
Ms. Brannin also stated that the ridership went up slightly in September. 
 
COMMENTS BY THE BOARD – The Board Chair stated he is constantly impressed by the 
professionalism and staff taking their job seriously – and conveyed his thanks.  
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 5:02 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING PUBLIC HEARING AND MEETING  

 
PUBLIC HEARING BOARD MEETING 
 
Proposed 2021 Budget Mason Transit Authority 
Tuesday, December 1, 2020 at 4:00PM Regular Meeting   
MTA Transit-Community Center December 15, 2020 at 4:00PM 
601 West Franklin Street On-line via WebEx and in person at 
Shelton the Transit-Community Center 
        601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 6



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 7



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 8



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 9



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 10



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 11



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 12



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 13



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 14



DocuSign Envelope ID: 73E8DFE1-C553-44DC-AFFA-748E009EA74C

11/13/2020

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 15



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 16



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 17



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 18



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Second View of 2021 Budget 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
A first view of the proposed 2021 budget was provided to the Board at its October 20, 
2020 meeting. Since that version of the budget, the following items have been 
modified: 
 

• Addition to Wages and Benefits for an Accounting Specialist position.  An 
adjustment was made to reduce Professional and Technical Services that had 
been a place holder for this position in the first draft. 

• Increased water fill and dump frequency for the temporary Belfair office.  
• Facility Repair and Maintenance was increased to allow for more separation of 

leased spaces. 
• $7,900 added to Volunteer Driver Program to purchase excess liability insurance.  
• Updated assumptions for staff with benefit open enrollment changes. 

 
This second draft has projected revenue at $7,477,706 and expenses of $7,354,031, 
with $50,000 allocated to Pooled Reserves for a projected Net Income of $73,675. 
 
The Capital Budget is attached. 
 
 
Summary:  Second view of 2021 Budget and first look at Capital Budget. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None at this time. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
None at this time. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 19



Consolidated 2021 Budget Budget %

2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Actual
 2020 

Projection 2020 Budget 2021 Budget Change YoY
Operating Revenue (Fares)
Passenger Fares 1 98,224              101,791            96,358           40,746           105,000             32,500               -69%
WD/VP 2 265,129            254,753            243,169         165,294         260,000             150,500             -42%

363,353            356,544            339,527         206,040         365,000             183,000             -50%
Non-Operating Revenue
Sales Tax 4 4,258,175         4,807,028         5,478,270      5,110,538      4,054,264          4,054,264          0%
Operating Grants 5 2,913,315         3,378,164         3,447,207      2,992,851      3,049,288          2,992,852          -2%
Rental Income 6 181,205            180,439            175,574         145,691         179,520             144,180             -20%
Investment Income 7 44,156              106,978            178,661         87,138           50,000               50,000               0%
Other income 8 277,418            350,089            245,560         37,551           61,510               53,410               -13%

7,674,269         8,822,698         9,525,272      8,373,769      7,394,582          7,294,706          -1%

Operating Reserves Allocation 130,406             -                     

Total Revenue 8,037,622         9,179,242         9,864,799      8,579,809      7,889,988          7,477,706          -5%

Expenses
Wages & Benefits 9 5,127,618         4,975,696         5,548,074      5,208,852      6,223,621          5,499,061          -12%
Contracted Services 10 254,849            353,117            223,619         211,710         180,475             274,132             52%
Fuel 12 331,502            389,011            384,880         216,896         377,450             300,750             -20%
Vehicle/Facility Repair & Maintenance 13 268,631            319,553            353,183         159,662         325,354             265,751             -18%
Insurance Premium 14 238,034            238,506            235,477         230,601         242,605             210,364             -13%
Intergovernmental - Audit Fees 15 26,604              29,411              31,649           32,115           33,000               33,000               0%
Facility Rent and Park & Ride 16 27,662              28,930              29,280           36,429           32,500               42,500               31%
Utilities 17 117,810            124,471            127,036         124,778         137,508             156,539             14%
Supplies 18 93,803              109,087            265,679         189,026         123,801             218,190             76%
Training & Meetings 19 26,433              29,439              37,271           8,719             47,035               37,737               -20%
Other Operating Expenses 20 131,735            253,846            121,710         118,908         166,639             316,007             90%

Total Expense 6,644,681         6,851,067         7,357,858      6,537,696      7,889,988          7,354,031          -7%

Net Income (Loss) 1,392,941         2,328,175         2,506,941      2,042,113      -                     123,675             

Operating Reserves Allocation (699,494)          -                     50,000               

Net Income (Loss) Net Reserves Allocated 1,392,941         1,628,681         2,506,941      2,042,113      -                     73,675               

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 20



2021 Budgeted Revenues Budget % 
2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2021 Budget  Change YoY 

Fares: Out of County 65,282          71,682          71,306               73,000               25,000               -66%
Fares: Adult Pass 28,544          26,265          21,255               28,000               6,000                 -79%
Fares: Reduced Pass 2,394            2,486            2,266                 2,500                 1,000                 -60%
Fares: Youth Pass 2,003            1,358            1,531                 1,500                 500                    -67%
Fares: Vanpool 73,306          59,174          55,203               60,000               30,500               -49%
Fares: Worker/Driver 191,824        195,579        187,966             200,000             120,000             -40%
LMTAAA Volunteer Donations 2,798            2,429            1,090                 1,000                 1,000                 0%
Sales of Maintenance Services 5,325            4,167            4,639                 5,000                 5,000                 0%
Rental of Bldgs and Other Property 10,397          17,597          19,556               21,500               27,493               28%
TCC Event Rental 30,895          26,266          27,810               32,020               5,000                 -84%
TCC Tenant Rental 139,913        136,577        128,208             126,000             111,687             -11%
Investment Interest Income 44,156          106,978        178,661             50,000               50,000               0%
Insurance Recoveries 11,104          36,346          14,589               2,500                 -                     
Sales Tax Interest Income 3,640            6,785            9,236                 3,000                 3,000                 0%
Gain/Loss on Disp of Asset 26,385               
Other Non-Transportation Revenue 28,561          33,093          32,605               6,600                 1,000                 -85%
T-CC Paver Donations -                -                -                     -                     -                     
Sales and Use Tax Revenue 4,258,175     4,807,028     5,478,270          4,054,264          4,054,264          0%
WSTIP Safety, Training, Recognition 2,500            2,500            4,500                 4,500                 4,500                 0%
Other Local Cash Grants 4,778                 -                     -                     

GCB2088 2015-2017 Operating Grant -State Portion 957,934        -                -                     -                     -                     
GCB2614 2017-2019 Operating Grant - State Portion 969,417        2,620,201     1,710,465          -                     -                     
PTD0044 2019-2021 Operating Grant - State Portion -                -                740,431             3,049,288          2,992,852          -2%
Other State Grants 194,390        226,000        113,000             -                     -                     
GCB2088 2015-2017 Operating Grant-Fed Portion 499,834        -                -                     -                     -                     
GCB2614 2017-2019 Operating Grant - Federal Portion 486,130        757,963        99,183               -                     -                     
PTD0044 2019-2021 Operating Grant - Federal Portion -                -                897,127             -                     -                     
DSHS TitleIII LMTAAA Volunteer Program 29,100          38,768          34,689               38,910               38,910               0%
PTD0192 CARES -                     

8,037,622     9,179,242     9,864,799          7,759,582          7,477,706          -4%

Operating Reserves Allocation 130,406             

Total Revenue 8,037,622     9,179,242     9,864,799          7,889,988          7,477,706          

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 21



2021 Budgeted Expenses Budget % 
2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2021 Budget  Change YoY 

Salaries and Wages 2,749,041          2,814,811          2,953,690                3,313,296          3,019,681          -9%
Salaries and Wages Overtime 53,634               64,833               58,505                    56,604               24,618               -57%
Board Stipends 3,300                 3,480                 3,660                      4,320                 4,320                 0%
Other Salaries and Wages 13,297               7,084                 6,545                      -                     -                     
Employer's FICA Expense 252,638             256,880             267,778                  295,222             271,522             -8%
PERS Pension Plan 383,668             417,082             442,214                  504,390             459,421             -9%
Medical Insurance 1,081,822          934,487             930,012                  1,088,419          891,298             -18%
Dental /Vision Insurance 97,141               88,846               86,084                    103,729             79,209               -24%
Life Insurance/LTD 18,524               18,382               19,083                    22,121               19,190               -13%
Unemployment Insurance 22,187               40,925               9,092                      15,000               100,000             567%
Labor and Industries Insurance 208,757             214,311             237,756                  224,068             160,629             -28%
Vacation Pay 221,470             227,359             230,679                  238,951             230,680             -3%
Holiday Pay 121,595             122,228             130,985                  148,670             135,775             -9%
Sick Leave Pay 112,793             105,117             123,178                  131,572             127,522             -3%
Employer's PFML Expense -                     -                     -                          5,791                 5,324                 -8%
Other Paid Absence 33,962               30,602               31,437                    33,808               31,329               -7%
Wellness Expense 73                      1,889                 1,472                      15,000               1,000                 -93%
Uniform Allowance 14,385               19,570               16,846                    15,220               15,470               2%
Driver Safety Training -                     -                     -                          100                    100                    0%
Tuition Reimbursement -                     -                     -                          2,500                 2,500                 0%
Tool Allowance 2,975                 2,450                 2,950                      3,100                 3,100                 0%
Phone Allowance 1,719                 200                    -                          -                     -                     
Employee Recognition 3,884                 3,984                 5,201                      16,740               16,375               -2%
Publication Fees 2,773                 3,502                 3,060                      2,850                 1,700                 -40%
Professional and Technical Services 25,032               128,731             51,093                    40,300               60,100               49%
Legal Services 55,523               27,526               32,316                    32,000               50,000               56%
Temporary Help -                     -                     1,075                      -                     -                     
Laundry 2,982                 2,675                 2,874                      2,900                 3,300                 14%
Repair/Maintenance by Other 56,241               102,166             99,244                    49,500               79,751               61%
Contract Services 142,916             162,598             106,627                  76,119               130,600             72%
Security Service 900                    2,007                 508                         475                    400                    -16%
Drug & Alcohol Testing 4,792                 6,025                 5,353                      5,832                 6,032                 3%
Printing 27,339               37,058               19,348                    15,025               23,475               56%
Postage 1,784                 1,702                 1,494                      1,390                 1,590                 14%
CDL Testing/DMV Check 1,026                 1,526                 39                           3,400                 850                    -75%
Other Services 3,938                 5,185                 4,208                      5,440                 4,760                 -13%

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 22



2021 Budgeted Expenses Budget % 
2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2021 Budget  Change YoY 

Fuel and Lubricants 331,502             389,011             384,880                  377,450             300,750             -20%
Tires and Tubes 38,251               33,082               46,263                    41,600               25,800               -38%
Incidental Expense 6                        -                     -                          250                    -                     
Facility Repair/Maintenance 13,907               30,555               33,419                    24,854               33,700               36%
Operating Supplies 1,051                 4,748                 1,513                      17,350               13,500               -22%
Office Supplies 8,910                 10,313               15,292                    12,600               13,000               3%
Shop Supplies 10,613               11,922               11,587                    9,000                 11,500               28%
Cleaning/Sanitation Supplies 8,933                 10,954               11,401                    11,050               21,600               95%
Safety Training Material & Supply 1,512                 2,809                 1,920                      9,700                 2,800                 -71%
Shelter Supplies 978                    558                    11,080                    2,000                 1,500                 -25%
Vehicle Maintenance Parts 160,233             153,751             174,256                  209,400             126,500             -40%
Software 2,113                 3,114                 13,592                    3,200                 12,000               275%
Communications Equipment (342)                   1,236                 6,226                      2,000                 2,000                 0%
IT Equipment 17,475               9,526                 127,555                  21,125               21,125               0%
Small Tools & Equipment 7,709                 4,713                 26,669                    10,501               9,600                 -9%
Safety Supplies 2,297                 1,634                 3,452                      2,751                 64,850               2257%
Small Equipment & Furniture 3,209                 7,463                 11,610                    5,109                 17,850               249%
Small Tools Replacement/Repair 223                    1,336                 2,940                      1,000                 1,800                 80%
Water and Sewer 10,115               10,542               10,868                    11,308               29,260               159%
Mobile Radio Service 19,932               20,052               20,715                    20,000               22,000               10%
Garbage 6,957                 8,364                 8,900                      8,850                 9,000                 2%
Gas 18,381               19,933               21,154                    23,809               25,500               7%
Electric 59,717               60,369               61,249                    65,170               63,000               -3%
Telephone Service 19,334               21,597               20,932                    23,441               24,729               5%
Internet Services 3,305                 3,667                 3,932                      4,930                 5,050                 2%
Insurance Premium 238,034             238,506             235,477                  242,605             210,364             -13%
Taxes 750                    683                    514                         250                    -                     
Property Tax 54                      54                      72                           125                    210                    68%
Veh License/Registration Fee 370                    936                    389                         800                    200                    -75%
Leasehold Tax 618                    141                    -                          -                     -                     
Dues, Memberships, Subscriptions 32,908               32,368               31,842                    32,849               29,627               -10%
Travel & Meeting Expense MTA 18,378               22,039               28,302                    32,905               22,012               -33%
Travel Expense - VD Program 35,653               39,366               35,447                    42,000               42,000               0%
Conference Registration 2,330                 5,145                 4,683                      7,200                 6,550                 -9%
Training / Seminars 5,725                 2,255                 4,286                      6,930                 9,175                 32%
Advertising/Promotion Media 18,139               19,970               23,680                    51,088               129,500             153%

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 23



2021 Budgeted Expenses Budget % 
2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2021 Budget  Change YoY 

Intergovernmental Audit Fees 26,604               29,411               31,649                    33,000               33,000               0%
Other Misc Expenses 1,301                 100,072             4,466                      3,500                 4,050                 16%
Bank Service Charges 851                    -                     -                          -                     -                     
Credit Card Fees 6,729                 6,699                 7,202                      6,800                 4,110                 -40%
Passenger Parking Facilities 24,062               25,054               25,590                    28,000               29,000               4%
Rent - Equipment -                     277                    -                          -                     -                     
Rent - Office 3,600                 3,600                 3,690                      4,500                 13,500               200%
Office Equipment Lease 7,203                 5,922                 4,758                      5,137                 700                    -86%

6,644,681          6,851,067          7,357,858                7,889,988          7,354,031          -7%

Net Income 1,392,941          2,328,175          2,506,941                (130,406)            123,675             

Operating Reserves Allocation (699,494)            130,406             (50,000)              

Net Income (Loss) Net Reserves Allocated 1,392,941          1,628,681          2,506,941                -                     73,675               

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 24



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business – Item 2 – DISCUSSION 
Subject:    2021 MTA Regular Board Meeting Calendar 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
The 2021 regular meeting schedule of the Mason Transit Authority Board was presented 
for discussion at its October 20 meeting. The Board indicated that it would like to have 
the April meeting at the Hoodsport Fire Hall and the October meeting at the Port of 
Allyn. 
 
I have been in contact with the individual that makes reservations at the Hoodsport Fire 
Hall. Currently the Hoodsport and Lake Cushman Fire Departments will be merging 
which will be effective January 1, 2021, with the Lake Cushman Fire Department 
assuming responsibility of the Fire Hall. At this point in time, it is unknown if the Fire 
Hall will be used for public use, social events or as a learning center and our contact 
has not received any other updates at this time. 
 
I have checked with the Port of Allyn and both of those dates are available. Given that 
the Port of Allyn is centrally located in Mason County, having the remote Board 
meetings held at this location is a good option for 2021. The Port of Allyn conference 
room has been tentatively reserved for both those dates pending approval by the 
Board. 
 
There is sufficient time for the Board to make another recommendation for location for 
future possible remote meeting site options so long as the calendar is approved at its 
December 15 meeting. I have checked with the Port of Hoodsport and their meeting 
room will not be able to accommodate a Board of 10 members. I also checked with 
Hoodsport Library and at this time they are not making meeting room reservations, 
however, perhaps in 2022, this might be another possible location. 
 
Finally, I will check later in January, 2021 with the newly merged fire department to see 
if it will be possible for MTA to rent the fire hall in future years and will report back to 
the Board in 2021.  
  
 
Summary: Approve the 2021 Regular Board meeting calendar as presented. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 25



Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-35 
establishing the 2021 schedule of regular MTA Authority Board meetings.  
 
 
 
 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 26



 
 
 
 

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
2021 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

(Adopted by Resolution No. 2020-35 on November 17, 2020) 
 
 

 

TIME DATE MONTH LOCATION 

4:00 P.M. 19 January MTA Transit-Community Center, 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 16 February MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 16 March MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 20 April 
Port of Allyn 
18560 East State Route 3, Allyn, WA 98524 

4:00 P.M. 18 May MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 15 June MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 20 July MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 17 August MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 

 
4:00 P.M. 21 September MTA Transit-Community Center 

601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 19 October 
Port of Allyn 
18560 East State Route 3, Allyn, WA 98524 

4:00 P.M. 16 November MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

4:00 P.M. 21 December MTA Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street, Shelton, WA 98584 

 
 

MTA Administrative Office: 790 East Johns Prairie Road, Shelton, WA 98584 
Phone: 360-426-9434 or 800-374-3747 
Clerk of the Authority E-mail: clerk@masontransit.org 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 27

mailto:clerk@masontransit.org


Resolution No. 2020-35 Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-35 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 

ESTABLISHING THE 2021 SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS FOR THE 
MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD. 

 WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority (“MTA”) Board holds regular monthly meetings 
on the 3rd Tuesday of each month that are open to the public; and  

 WHEREAS, the need exists to establish a published scheduled of said meetings. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mason Transit Authority Board that the 
regular monthly meetings for the 2021 calendar year be held at the times and locations as 
outlined on the attached schedule. Meeting changes and special meetings will be published as 
required by law.  
 

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 28



Resolution No. 2020-35 Page 2 of 1 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:   ________________________________________ 
     Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: _____________________________________________ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:  ____________________________________ DATE: ________________ 

     Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 29



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Surplus Inventory  
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
Attached is a list of obsolete IT Equipment items no longer in use or useful. It is 
recommended to surplus the assets listed. 
 

 
 
 
Summary:  Approve surplusing certain obsolete/abandoned IT Equipment. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Reduction to fixed assets $116,461.80. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-36 regarding 
the disposal of the assets as set forth in Exhibit A to that resolution.  
 
 

Description Acquisition Date Value
HP VM vSphere Std. Ed. + 3 yr Support 5/6/2013 3,636.62$      
Dell File Server - Controller 1/1/2000 9,996.00$      
Main SQL Server 1/1/2003 8,633.68$      
ABRA Software 11/1/2004 26,574.98$    
Fleet Net Software 1/1/2005 30,340.00$    
Voicemail - Olympic Telephone 7/1/2005 7,581.00$      
Sharp Color Copier 7/1/2003 21,577.02$    
Phone Switch Bldg 4 6/1/2005 8,122.50$      

116,461.80$ 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 30



Resolution No. 2020-36 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-36 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board has adopted policies to ensure the 
fair, impartial, responsible and practical disposition of surplus property of MTA and such 
policies ensure that the public shall receive the greatest value for such items; and 

 WHEREAS, certain equipment as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto have been 
deemed no longer useful; and 

  WHEREAS, there is value to these items and by the disposal of such assets, MTA will 
be able to use the funds for other current needs of MTA; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the items identified on Exhibit A attached hereto be deemed surplus and that the 
items to be sold pursuant to MTA’s disposition of surplus property policy. 
 

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 31



Resolution No. 2020-36 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 
 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 32



Resolution No. 2020-36 Exhibit A 
 

EXHIBIT A 

LIST OF ITEMS FOR SURPLUS 

 

 

 

Description Acquisition Date Value
HP VM vSphere Std. Ed. + 3 yr Support 5/6/2013 3,636.62$      
Dell File Server - Controller 1/1/2000 9,996.00$      
Main SQL Server 1/1/2003 8,633.68$      
ABRA Software 11/1/2004 26,574.98$    
Fleet Net Software 1/1/2005 30,340.00$    
Voicemail - Olympic Telephone 7/1/2005 7,581.00$      
Sharp Color Copier 7/1/2003 21,577.02$    
Phone Switch Bldg 4 6/1/2005 8,122.50$      

116,461.80$ 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 33



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 2 – Actionable 
Subject:  Update of Records Management Policy (POL-206)     
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This policy, originally approved in 2019, is being updated to address WSDOT retention 
requirements for all records that relate to any WSDOT grant funded projects. WSDOT 
retention requirements shall override the requirements adopted by the Washington 
State Archivist & Local Records Committee when a record relates to any type of WSDOT 
grant funding.  
 
This updated policy has been reviewed by the Policy Review Committee and Legal 
Counsel. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve the revised Records Management Policy (POL-206). 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve and adopt Resolution 
No. 2020-37 that approves the revised Records Management Policy (POL-206).  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 34



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: December 17November 17, 201920 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2019-3620-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 1 of 5 

POL-206 RECORDS MANAGEMENT POLICY 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) Board members, employees and 
volunteers and all Mason Transit Authority records, regardless of format. 

1.0 Purpose 

This records management policy provides requirements and guidelines for the creation, 
maintenance, use and disposition of Mason Transit Authority records. This policy is 
designed to: 

1.1 Demonstrate and document compliance with laws, regulations and standards. 
1.2 Facilitate and sustain day-to-day operations. 
1.3 Support budgeting and planning. 
1.4 Assist in answering questions about past decisions and activities. 

2.0 Policy 

Proper handling of records enables and supports Mason Transit Authority in fulfilling its 
mission and the responsibilities required by RCW 40.14 and RCW 42.56. An effective 
records management program ensures that records necessary for the effective 
functioning of MTA business are systematically controlled from creation through use, 
storage and/or disposition. 

3.0 Responsibility/Authority: 

3.1 Public Records Officer:  The Public Records Officer is the designated public records 
officer appointed by resolution by the Authority Board of Mason Transit Authority. 
The Public Records Officer oversees all records management; advises departments 
regarding records retention, disposition, public disclosure; and provides records 
management training. 

3.2 Acting Public Records Officer:  The Acting Public Records Officer, also appointed by 
resolution by the Authority Board of Mason Transit Authority, shall carry out those 
duties of the Public Records Officer when absent. 

3.3 Managers:  The Managers will assist and comply with the Public Records Officer’s 
directions and manage individual department records. Individual departments are 
responsible for securely maintaining records for the retention period indicated on 
the retention schedule (as defined in Section 4.0 below). Department 
responsibilities include ensuring the physical safety of records and ensuring that 
confidential records are protected from inappropriate release and the day-to-day 
management of records in all forms and as set forth in RCW 40.14 and 42.56. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 35



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: December 17November 17, 201920 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2019-3620-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 2 of 5 

3.4 Staff:  All employees create and use public records as a part of their regular job 
duties and are responsible for following this policy as well as in-house guidelines 
and procedures. Staff is expected to be responsible and will be held accountable in 
meeting Mason Transit Authority’s responsibilities under this policy. Failure to do 
so could result in disciplinary action.  

3.5 All: Unless being terminated immediately, Managers and staff that are concluding 
their employment with Mason Transit Authority shall meet with the Public Records 
Officer and the Systems Administrator prior to their departure so that all  paper 
and electronic records under that employee’s responsibility are transitioned as 
appropriate. 
 

4.0 Definitions 

4.1 As used in this policy, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

Active Record: An active record is used in an office on a routine basis and accessed 
at least several times a year. Active records are usually kept on-site. 

Archival Record: Public records with the “archival” designation in the Retention 
Schedule (as defined below) are records which may possess enduring legal and/or 
historic value and must not be destroyed. Archival Records are to be transferred to 
the Public Records Officer for proper transference to the Washington State 
Archives for permanent retention. 

Essential Record:  Essential records are those records that MTA must have in order 
to resume core functions and maintain or resume business continuity following a 
disaster, and support MTA’s legal authority, responsibility, rights and financial 
status; are necessary to resume and restore operations; and document the rights 
and obligations of MTA employees and citizens. Essential records require extra 
care to ensure they are adequately backed up and recoverable in the event of a 
disaster, such as a fireproof cabinet or backup of electronic records on a remote 
server. While the retention requirements for essential records may range from 
very short-term to archival, security backup of these public records shall be 
created and may be deposited with Washington State Archives. 

Inactive Record: A record used or accessed in an office infrequently or no longer 
used in the conduct of current business, but still required to be kept by the 
Retention Schedule for legal or historical purposes. Inactive records in other than 
electronic format shall be stored in the Records Vault until the assigned retention 
period has been satisfied and shall be transferred to the Washington State 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 36



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: December 17November 17, 201920 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2019-3620-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 3 of 5 

Archives for permanent retention. Inactive records in electronic format shall be 
transferred electronically to the Washington State Archives. 

Public Record: RCW 40.14.010 defines public records as “…any paper, 
correspondence, completed form, bound record book, photograph, film, sound 
recording, map drawing, machine-readable material, compact disc meeting 
current industry ISO specifications, or other document, regardless of physical form 
or characteristics, and including such copies thereof, that have been made or 
received by any agency of the state of Washington in connection with the 
transaction of public business…”; or as amended at any time. 

Records Disposition: Actions taken with records when they are no longer required 
to be retained by Mason Transit Authority as set forth in the Retention Schedule. 
Possible disposition actions include transfer to archives and destruction. 

Records Vault: That area of Mason Transit Authority that is secured by key entry 
and set aside for storage of all Inactive Records, unless custody is transferred to 
the Washington State Archives for historical preservation. 

Retention Schedule: That document setting forth requirements adopted by the 
Washington State Archivist & Local Records Committee which specifies the length 
of time each record series will be retained by Mason Transit Authority, whether 
the record is designated essential, archival or potentially archival, and final 
disposition of the Public Record. In the case of WSDOT grant fundings, all records 
relating to the project in which grant funding was received by MTA, whether 
Active, Inactive, Archival or Essential Records, shall be retained, at a minimum, 
for the term of the grant funded project plus six years thereafter. This 
requirement of WSDOT grant fundings shall override the schedule of the 
Washington State Archivist and Local Records Committee for those Public Records 
that relate to a grant funded project. 

Transitory Records: Transitory Records are those records identified in the 
Retention Schedule as such and only document information that is temporary, 
short-term value, provided that the Public Record is not needed as evidence of a 
business transaction and is not covered by a more specific record series on the 
Retention Schedule. Recording the destruction of transitory records is not 
required. 

Record Series: Any group of Public Records that is used as a unit, filed as a unit and 
can be disposed of as a unit, so long as any disposition is in alignment with the 
Retention Schedule as fully defined above. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 37



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: December 17November 17, 201920 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2019-3620-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 4 of 5 

Disposition Authority Number: The State Archivist & Local Records Committee 
assigns a Disposition Authority Number or “DAN” to each Public Record, which is 
identified in the Retention Schedule. It is up to the person doing the archiving to 
look up the type of record, locate the DAN and place it on the archive label or work 
with the Public Records Officer to ensure that the correct DAN is assigned to each 
record. 

5.0 Record Retention 

5.1 For Public Records that do not relate to WSDOT grant fundings, Tthe Washington 
State Archivist & Local Records Committee Retention Schedules and RCW 40.14 
provides Mason Transit Authority with the legal authority to destroy Public 
Records only after the minimum retention period listed in the Retention Schedules 
has been met. The retention period is the minimum time that records must be 
kept. 

5.15.2  For any Public Records that relate to projects funded by WSDOT grants, 
those Public Records shall be retained during the term of the project and for six (6) 
years thereafter.  

5.25.3 All destruction of any Public Records, except Transitory Documents, shall 
be performed and recorded by the Public Records Officer. 

5.35.4 Confidential or sensitive records, including non-paper media, must be 
reduced to an illegible condition when destroyed. 

6.0 Electronic Records 

6.1 Electronic records must be retained in electronic format and remain useable, 
searchable, retrievable, and authentic for the applicable retention period. Printing 
and retaining a hard copy is not a substitute for the electronic version. Examples of 
electronic records include web pages, databases, records “born” in a digital 
format. 

6.2 Electronic records must be retained and disposed of based on content rather than 
format. The Retention Schedule applies to all formats of records, as set forth in 
RCW 40.14.010 

6.3 In making decisions about how long to retain electronic records, the Retention 
Schedule is the minimum requirement MTA must hold a record and should be 
used as a guide as much as possible. The Manager is responsible for determining 
whether or not it would be better for MTA to retain records for a longer period of 
time and notify the Public Records Officer for inventory, and if appropriate, 
storage purposes with a new destruction date to be determined. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 38



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: December 17November 17, 201920 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2019-3620-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 5 of 5 

7.0 E-mail Employer’s Right to Access 

Emails sent or received on MTA accounts, devices or equipment may be accessed and 
monitored in the normal course of business by system administrators, supervisors and 
support staff; may be releasable to the public, may require special measures for privacy 
protection; and are subject to discovery proceedings in legal actions. E-mail either sent 
from or received on MTA accounts, devices or equipment which relate to or contain 
information relating to the conduct of MTA business or the performance of any MTA 
governmental or proprietary function are public records subject to release.  E-mails sent 
or received on personal devices are also public records if the subject of the e-mail is 
within the scope of employment of the individual.  Any e-mails can qualify as public 
records if they contain any information that refers to or impacts the actions, processes, 
and functions of MTA. Employees may be required by MTA to search personal devices 
for any public records and turn over such records to the Public Records Officer. 

8.0 Legal Holds and Public Records Requests 

Records involved in litigation or reasonably anticipated or foreseeable litigation will be 
placed on legal hold and must be preserved until the legal hold is released by the Public 
Records Officer. If a record(s) covered by a public records request is scheduled for 
destruction, the record(s) must be retained until the request is fulfilled.  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 39



Resolution No. 2020-37 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-37 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED RECORDS MANAGEMENT POLICY (POL-206) 

AND SUPERSEDING AND REPLACING IN FULL ANY PREVIOUSLY 
ADOPTED OR APPROVED RECORDS MANAGEMENT POLICY, INCLUDING 

RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2019-36. 

 
WHEREAS, the Records Management Policy (POL-206) was originally approved by the 

Mason Transit Authority Board in 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of MTA staff that WSDOT requires all 
records in connection with a project that has received WSDOT or federal grant funding, those 
records shall be retained for six (6) years after the project completion and funding; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Records Management Policy (POL-206), which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Mason Transit Authority Records Management 

Policy (POL-206) shall supersede and replace in full any previously adopted or approved Mason 
Transit Authority Records Management Policy, including rescinding Resolution No. 2019-36. 
 

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 40



Resolution No. 2020-37 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 41



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 1 of 5 

POL-206 RECORDS MANAGEMENT POLICY 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) Board members, employees and 
volunteers and all Mason Transit Authority records, regardless of format. 

1.0 Purpose 

This records management policy provides requirements and guidelines for the creation, 
maintenance, use and disposition of Mason Transit Authority records. This policy is 
designed to: 

1.1 Demonstrate and document compliance with laws, regulations and standards. 
1.2 Facilitate and sustain day-to-day operations. 
1.3 Support budgeting and planning. 
1.4 Assist in answering questions about past decisions and activities. 

2.0 Policy 

Proper handling of records enables and supports Mason Transit Authority in fulfilling its 
mission and the responsibilities required by RCW 40.14 and RCW 42.56. An effective 
records management program ensures that records necessary for the effective 
functioning of MTA business are systematically controlled from creation through use, 
storage and/or disposition. 

3.0 Responsibility/Authority: 

3.1 Public Records Officer:  The Public Records Officer is the designated public records 
officer appointed by resolution by the Authority Board of Mason Transit Authority. 
The Public Records Officer oversees all records management; advises departments 
regarding records retention, disposition, public disclosure; and provides records 
management training. 

3.2 Acting Public Records Officer:  The Acting Public Records Officer, also appointed by 
resolution by the Authority Board of Mason Transit Authority, shall carry out those 
duties of the Public Records Officer when absent. 

3.3 Managers:  The Managers will assist and comply with the Public Records Officer’s 
directions and manage individual department records. Individual departments are 
responsible for securely maintaining records for the retention period indicated on 
the retention schedule (as defined in Section 4.0 below). Department 
responsibilities include ensuring the physical safety of records and ensuring that 
confidential records are protected from inappropriate release and the day-to-day 
management of records in all forms and as set forth in RCW 40.14 and 42.56. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 42



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 2 of 5 

3.4 Staff:  All employees create and use public records as a part of their regular job 
duties and are responsible for following this policy as well as in-house guidelines 
and procedures. Staff is expected to be responsible and will be held accountable in 
meeting Mason Transit Authority’s responsibilities under this policy. Failure to do 
so could result in disciplinary action.  

3.5 All: Unless being terminated immediately, Managers and staff that are concluding 
their employment with Mason Transit Authority shall meet with the Public Records 
Officer and the Systems Administrator prior to their departure so that all  paper 
and electronic records under that employee’s responsibility are transitioned as 
appropriate. 
 

4.0 Definitions 

4.1 As used in this policy, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

Active Record: An active record is used in an office on a routine basis and accessed 
at least several times a year. Active records are usually kept on-site. 

Archival Record: Public records with the “archival” designation in the Retention 
Schedule (as defined below) are records which may possess enduring legal and/or 
historic value and must not be destroyed. Archival Records are to be transferred to 
the Public Records Officer for proper transference to the Washington State 
Archives for permanent retention. 

Essential Record:  Essential records are those records that MTA must have in order 
to resume core functions and maintain or resume business continuity following a 
disaster, and support MTA’s legal authority, responsibility, rights and financial 
status; are necessary to resume and restore operations; and document the rights 
and obligations of MTA employees and citizens. Essential records require extra 
care to ensure they are adequately backed up and recoverable in the event of a 
disaster, such as a fireproof cabinet or backup of electronic records on a remote 
server. While the retention requirements for essential records may range from 
very short-term to archival, security backup of these public records shall be 
created and may be deposited with Washington State Archives. 

Inactive Record: A record used or accessed in an office infrequently or no longer 
used in the conduct of current business, but still required to be kept by the 
Retention Schedule for legal or historical purposes. Inactive records in other than 
electronic format shall be stored in the Records Vault until the assigned retention 
period has been satisfied and shall be transferred to the Washington State 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 43



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 3 of 5 

Archives for permanent retention. Inactive records in electronic format shall be 
transferred electronically to the Washington State Archives. 

Public Record: RCW 40.14.010 defines public records as “…any paper, 
correspondence, completed form, bound record book, photograph, film, sound 
recording, map drawing, machine-readable material, compact disc meeting 
current industry ISO specifications, or other document, regardless of physical form 
or characteristics, and including such copies thereof, that have been made or 
received by any agency of the state of Washington in connection with the 
transaction of public business…”; or as amended at any time. 

Records Disposition: Actions taken with records when they are no longer required 
to be retained by Mason Transit Authority as set forth in the Retention Schedule. 
Possible disposition actions include transfer to archives and destruction. 

Records Vault: That area of Mason Transit Authority that is secured by key entry 
and set aside for storage of all Inactive Records, unless custody is transferred to 
the Washington State Archives for historical preservation. 

Retention Schedule: That document setting forth requirements adopted by the 
Washington State Archivist & Local Records Committee which specifies the length 
of time each record series will be retained by Mason Transit Authority, whether 
the record is designated essential, archival or potentially archival, and final 
disposition of the Public Record. In the case of WSDOT grant funding, all records 
relating to the project in which grant funding was received by MTA, whether 
Active, Inactive, Archival or Essential Records, shall be retained, at a minimum, 
for the term of the grant funded project plus six years thereafter. This 
requirement of WSDOT grant funding shall override the schedule of the 
Washington State Archivist and Local Records Committee for those Public Records 
that relate to a grant funded project. 

Transitory Records: Transitory Records are those records identified in the 
Retention Schedule as such and only document information that is temporary, 
short-term value, provided that the Public Record is not needed as evidence of a 
business transaction and is not covered by a more specific record series on the 
Retention Schedule. Recording the destruction of transitory records is not 
required. 

Record Series: Any group of Public Records that is used as a unit, filed as a unit and 
can be disposed of as a unit, so long as any disposition is in alignment with the 
Retention Schedule as fully defined above. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 44



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 4 of 5 

Disposition Authority Number: The State Archivist & Local Records Committee 
assigns a Disposition Authority Number or “DAN” to each Public Record, which is 
identified in the Retention Schedule. It is up to the person doing the archiving to 
look up the type of record, locate the DAN and place it on the archive label or work 
with the Public Records Officer to ensure that the correct DAN is assigned to each 
record. 

5.0 Record Retention 

5.1 For Public Records that do not relate to WSDOT grant fundings, the Washington 
State Archivist & Local Records Committee Retention Schedules and RCW 40.14 
provides Mason Transit Authority with the legal authority to destroy Public 
Records only after the minimum retention period listed in the Retention Schedules 
has been met. The retention period is the minimum time that records must be 
kept. 

5.2 For any Public Records that relate to projects funded by WSDOT grants, those 
Public Records shall be retained during the term of the project and for six (6) years 
thereafter.  

5.3 All destruction of any Public Records, except Transitory Documents, shall be 
performed and recorded by the Public Records Officer. 

5.4 Confidential or sensitive records, including non-paper media, must be reduced to 
an illegible condition when destroyed. 

6.0 Electronic Records 

6.1 Electronic records must be retained in electronic format and remain useable, 
searchable, retrievable, and authentic for the applicable retention period. Printing 
and retaining a hard copy is not a substitute for the electronic version. Examples of 
electronic records include web pages, databases, records “born” in a digital 
format. 

6.2 Electronic records must be retained and disposed of based on content rather than 
format. The Retention Schedule applies to all formats of records, as set forth in 
RCW 40.14.010 

6.3 In making decisions about how long to retain electronic records, the Retention 
Schedule is the minimum requirement MTA must hold a record and should be 
used as a guide as much as possible. The Manager is responsible for determining 
whether or not it would be better for MTA to retain records for a longer period of 
time and notify the Public Records Officer for inventory, and if appropriate, 
storage purposes with a new destruction date to be determined. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 45



 
 

Title: Records Management Policy 
Number: 206 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2019-36 
Prepared by: Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-37 

 

 
See Also:  POL-205, POL-702, POL-703  
Page 5 of 5 

7.0 E-mail Employer’s Right to Access 

Emails sent or received on MTA accounts, devices or equipment may be accessed and 
monitored in the normal course of business by system administrators, supervisors and 
support staff; may be releasable to the public, may require special measures for privacy 
protection; and are subject to discovery proceedings in legal actions. E-mail either sent 
from or received on MTA accounts, devices or equipment which relate to or contain 
information relating to the conduct of MTA business or the performance of any MTA 
governmental or proprietary function are public records subject to release.  E-mails sent 
or received on personal devices are also public records if the subject of the e-mail is 
within the scope of employment of the individual.  Any e-mails can qualify as public 
records if they contain any information that refers to or impacts the actions, processes, 
and functions of MTA. Employees may be required by MTA to search personal devices 
for any public records and turn over such records to the Public Records Officer. 

8.0 Legal Holds and Public Records Requests 

Records involved in litigation or reasonably anticipated or foreseeable litigation will be 
placed on legal hold and must be preserved until the legal hold is released by the Public 
Records Officer. If a record(s) covered by a public records request is scheduled for 
destruction, the record(s) must be retained until the request is fulfilled.  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 46



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:  Update of Performance Counseling Policy (POL-304)     
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This policy was last updated in 2016. Edits include the following: 
 

• Title changes; 
• The Administrative Services Manager will review a recommended suspension or 

discharge, and provide notification to the General Manager; and 
• Progressive discipline documentation submitted to an employee’s personnel file 

will not be considered for disciplinary action after one (1) year rather than two 
(2) years.  This change is in alignment with the recent Drivers collective 
bargaining agreement. 

 
This updated policy has been reviewed by the Policy Review Committee and Legal 
Counsel. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve the revised Performance Counseling Policy (POL-304). 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
  
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve and adopt Resolution 
No. 2020-38 that approves the revised Performance Counseling Policy (POL-304).  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 47



 
 

Title: Performance Counseling Policy  
Number: 304 
Effective: November 17, 201620201 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-32 
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2016-3220-38 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, Report of Performance Counseling Form 
Page 1 of 4 

POL-304 PERFORMANCE COUNSELING POLICY  
 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees. 
 

1.0 Purpose 
 

MTA is obligated to provide the highest quality of service to its customers.  In order to 
accomplish this, it is necessary to expect an acceptable level of performance from 
employees when fulfilling the requirements of the agency’s rules, policies, and 
procedures.  Because we expect employees to adhere to the rules, policies, and 
procedures, we strive to provide necessary training and assistance to aid in successfully 
fulfilling the job requirements.  When an employee’s performance fails to meet 
expectations, the agency will generally take appropriate action to assist the employee to 
return their performance to an acceptable level. 
 
MTA’s Performance Counseling Policy is designed to provide a structured corrective 
action process to improve and prevent a recurrence of undesirable employee behavior 
and performance issues.  It has been designed to be consistent with MTA’s values, 
human resources best practices and employment laws.   
 
Nothing in this policy is intended to create a contract of employment between any 
employee and MTA.  The relationship between MTA and its non-represented employees 
is "at will," and thus may be terminated by either MTA or the employee at any time and 
for any reason.  No representative of MTA, except the General Manager through a 
written contract, has any authority to enter into any agreement for employment for any 
specified period of time, or to make any agreement contrary to the above statements. 
 

 MTA uses an approach that emphasizes the opportunity for the employee and the 
supervisor to resolve performance problems through discussion and coaching, while 
recognizing that acceptable performance is the goal the employee must achieve.  This 
approach utilizes the Report of Performance Counseling Form. 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 48



 
 

Title: Performance Counseling Policy  
Number: 304 
Effective: November 17, 201620201 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-32 
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2016-3220-38 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, Report of Performance Counseling Form 
Page 2 of 4 

2.0 Performance Counseling & Definitions 
 
Outlined below is the process of MTA’s Performance Counseling Policy.  MTA reserves 
the right to combine or skip levels depending on the facts of each situation and the 
nature of the offense.  The level of disciplinary intervention may also vary.  Some of the 
factors that will be considered are whether the offense is repeated, despite coaching, 
counseling or training, the employee’s work record, and the impact the conduct and 
performance issues have on the agency.  The Performance Counsel Policy is designed to 
address performance issues through five levels depending on the severity of the issue: 

 
1. Counseling and Verbal Warning – Creates an opportunity for the immediate 

supervisor to schedule a meeting with an employee or immediately bring attention 
to the existing performance, conduct or attendance issue.  The supervisor should 
discuss with the employee the nature of the problem or the violation of company 
policies and procedures.  The supervisor is expected to clearly describe expectations 
and what the employee must do to improve performance or resolve the problem. 
 
Within five business days of this meeting, the supervisor will prepare written 
documentation of the meeting.  The employee will be asked to sign this document 
to demonstrate his or her understanding of the issues and the corrective action.  The 
Counseling and Verbal Warning will be placed in the employee’s Working File for 
future reference and will accompany the Written Warning if further action is 
required.  The Counseling and Verbal Warning will be removed from the Working 
File after one year if no further disciplinary actions occur. 
 

2. Written Warning – Although MTA hopes that the employee will promptly correct 
any performance, conduct or attendance issues that were identified in the 
Counseling and Verbal Warning, MTA recognizes that this may not always occur.  
The Written Warning involves more formal documentation of the performance, 
conduct or attendance issues and consequences. 
 
During the Written Warning, the immediate supervisor and manager or Human 
ResourcesAdministrative Services Manager will meet with the employee to review 
any additional incidents or information about the performance, conduct or 
attendance issues as well as any prior relevant corrective action plans.  Management 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 49



 
 

Title: Performance Counseling Policy  
Number: 304 
Effective: November 17, 201620201 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-32 
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2016-3220-38 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, Report of Performance Counseling Form 
Page 3 of 4 

will outline the consequences for the employee of his or her continued failure to 
meet performance or conduct expectations. 
 
A formal Coaching / Training or Performance Improvement Plan requiring the 
employee’s immediate and sustained corrective action will be issued within five days 
of the meeting.  A warning outlining that the employee may be subject to additional 
discipline up to and including termination if immediate and sustained corrective 
action is not taken may also be included in the Written Warning. 
 

3. Decision-Making Leave – In cases where suspension seems too harsh, but the 
Written Warning has not been effective, a Decision-Making Leave can be invoked.  
This is up to a one-day, paid administrative day, for self-reflection to state how the 
employee will turn the bad behavior or performance around. 
 

4. Suspension – There may be performance, conduct or safety incidents so problematic 
and harmful that the most effective action may be the temporary removal of the 
employee from the workplace.  When immediate action is necessary to ensure the 
safety of the employee and others, the immediate supervisor may suspend the 
employee pending the results of an investigation. 

 
Suspensions that are recommended as part of the normal progression of this 
Performance Counseling Policy are subject to approval from thewill be reviewed by 
the Human ResourcesAdministrative Services Manager, who will also provide 
notification to inform the General Manager. 
 
Depending on the seriousness of the infraction, the employee may be suspended 
without pay in full-day increments consistent with federal, state and local wage-and-
hour employment laws.  Non-exempt/hourly employees may not substitute or use 
an accrued paid vacation or sick day in lieu of the unpaid suspension.  Due to Fair 
Labor Standards Act (FLSA) compliance issues, unpaid suspension of salaried/exempt 
employees is reserved for serious workplace safety or conduct issues.  HR will 
provide guidance so that the discipline is administered without jeopardizing the FLSA 
exemption status. 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 50



 
 

Title: Performance Counseling Policy  
Number: 304 
Effective: November 17, 201620201 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-32 
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2016-3220-38 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, Report of Performance Counseling Form 
Page 4 of 4 

5. Discharge – The last and most serious step in progressive discipline is termination.  
However, if the offense is so severe all steps may be waived.  For example, a 
probationary employee may be discharged without going through all of the steps.  
Other severe offenses include, but are not limited to, intoxication or drug abuse 
while on duty, sexual harassment, fights, etc.  Paid administrative leave may be 
provided while an investigation is being conducted.  Human Resources The 
Administrative Services Manager will review must approve all discharges withand 
provide notification to the General Manager prior to the discharge. 

 
The program is generally administered progressively through the five stages described 
earlier unless individual circumstances merit otherwise.  Such circumstances include 
cases where the violation is of such a serious nature that a written reminder, decision-
making leave, suspension, or discharge is justifiable, even if on a first offense.  This 
policy does not change the “at will” employee’s status. 
 
A copy of the written warning, decision-making leave and suspension shall be placed 
within the employee's personnel file and will not be considered for disciplinary action 
beyond onetwo (12) years from date of the warning, provided there is no additional 
disciplinary action within that period.  If the employee is absent from work for a period 
greater than thirty (30) days, the two one (21) year period shall be extended in 
proportion to the amount of time the employee remained absent from work. 
 
In all cases of discharge, demotion or other discipline, the employee involved shall be 
notified, in writing, of the action and the reason for such action. Before imposition of 
discharge, demotion, or unpaid suspension, MTA will provide advance notice of the 
intended disciplinary action. 
 

If the employee is in a union, the employee shall have the right to have a Union Steward 
present at formal disciplinary action, upon request, as stated in the union contracts. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 51



Resolution No. 2020-38 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-38 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED PERFORMANCE COUNSELING POLICY (POL-304) 

AND SUPERSEDING AND REPLACING IN FULL ANY PREVIOUSLY 
ADOPTED OR APPROVED PERFORMANCE COUNSELING POLICY, 

INCLUDING RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2016-32. 

 
WHEREAS, the Performance Counseling Policy (POL-304) was originally approved by 

the Mason Transit Authority Board in 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, minor edits are necessary due to title changes and procedural processes 
relating to recommended suspensions and retention of certain documents being held in 
personnel files of employees to be in alignment with recently negotiated collective bargaining 
unit agreements; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Performance Counseling Policy (POL-304), which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Mason Transit Authority Performance Counseling 

Policy (POL-304) shall supersede and replace in full any previously adopted or approved Mason 
Transit Authority Performance Counseling Policy, including rescinding Resolution No. 2016-32. 
 

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 52



Resolution No. 2020-38 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 53



 
 

Title: Performance Counseling Policy  
Number: 304 
Effective: December 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-32 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
                             Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-38 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, Report of Performance Counseling Form 
Page 1 of 4 

POL-304 PERFORMANCE COUNSELING POLICY  
 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees. 
 

1.0 Purpose 
 

MTA is obligated to provide the highest quality of service to its customers.  In order to 
accomplish this, it is necessary to expect an acceptable level of performance from 
employees when fulfilling the requirements of the agency’s rules, policies, and 
procedures.  Because we expect employees to adhere to the rules, policies, and 
procedures, we strive to provide necessary training and assistance to aid in successfully 
fulfilling the job requirements.  When an employee’s performance fails to meet 
expectations, the agency will generally take appropriate action to assist the employee to 
return their performance to an acceptable level. 
 
MTA’s Performance Counseling Policy is designed to provide a structured corrective 
action process to improve and prevent a recurrence of undesirable employee behavior 
and performance issues.  It has been designed to be consistent with MTA’s values, 
human resources best practices and employment laws.   
 
Nothing in this policy is intended to create a contract of employment between any 
employee and MTA.  The relationship between MTA and its non-represented employees 
is "at will," and thus may be terminated by either MTA or the employee at any time and 
for any reason.  No representative of MTA, except the General Manager through a 
written contract, has any authority to enter into any agreement for employment for any 
specified period of time, or to make any agreement contrary to the above statements. 
 

 MTA uses an approach that emphasizes the opportunity for the employee and the 
supervisor to resolve performance problems through discussion and coaching, while 
recognizing that acceptable performance is the goal the employee must achieve.  This 
approach utilizes the Report of Performance Counseling Form. 

 
2.0 Performance Counseling & Definitions 

 
Outlined below is the process of MTA’s Performance Counseling Policy.  MTA reserves 
the right to combine or skip levels depending on the facts of each situation and the 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 54



 
 

Title: Performance Counseling Policy  
Number: 304 
Effective: December 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-32 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
                             Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-38 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, Report of Performance Counseling Form 
Page 2 of 4 

nature of the offense.  The level of disciplinary intervention may also vary.  Some of the 
factors that will be considered are whether the offense is repeated, despite coaching, 
counseling or training, the employee’s work record, and the impact the conduct and 
performance issues have on the agency.  The Performance Counsel Policy is designed to 
address performance issues through five levels depending on the severity of the issue: 

 
1. Counseling and Verbal Warning – Creates an opportunity for the immediate 

supervisor to schedule a meeting with an employee or immediately bring attention 
to the existing performance, conduct or attendance issue.  The supervisor should 
discuss with the employee the nature of the problem or the violation of company 
policies and procedures.  The supervisor is expected to clearly describe expectations 
and what the employee must do to improve performance or resolve the problem. 
 
Within five business days of this meeting, the supervisor will prepare written 
documentation of the meeting.  The employee will be asked to sign this document 
to demonstrate his or her understanding of the issues and the corrective action.  The 
Counseling and Verbal Warning will be placed in the employee’s Working File for 
future reference and will accompany the Written Warning if further action is 
required.  The Counseling and Verbal Warning will be removed from the Working 
File after one year if no further disciplinary actions occur. 
 

2. Written Warning – Although MTA hopes that the employee will promptly correct 
any performance, conduct or attendance issues that were identified in the 
Counseling and Verbal Warning, MTA recognizes that this may not always occur.  
The Written Warning involves more formal documentation of the performance, 
conduct or attendance issues and consequences. 
 
During the Written Warning, the immediate supervisor and manager or 
Administrative Services Manager will meet with the employee to review any 
additional incidents or information about the performance, conduct or attendance 
issues as well as any prior relevant corrective action plans.  Management will outline 
the consequences for the employee of his or her continued failure to meet 
performance or conduct expectations. 
 
A formal Coaching / Training or Performance Improvement Plan requiring the 
employee’s immediate and sustained corrective action will be issued within five days 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 55



 
 

Title: Performance Counseling Policy  
Number: 304 
Effective: December 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-32 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
                             Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-38 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, Report of Performance Counseling Form 
Page 3 of 4 

of the meeting.  A warning outlining that the employee may be subject to additional 
discipline up to and including termination if immediate and sustained corrective 
action is not taken may also be included in the Written Warning. 
 

3. Decision-Making Leave – In cases where suspension seems too harsh, but the 
Written Warning has not been effective, a Decision-Making Leave can be invoked.  
This is up to a one-day, paid administrative day, for self-reflection to state how the 
employee will turn the bad behavior or performance around. 
 

4. Suspension – There may be performance, conduct or safety incidents so problematic 
and harmful that the most effective action may be the temporary removal of the 
employee from the workplace.  When immediate action is necessary to ensure the 
safety of the employee and others, the immediate supervisor may suspend the 
employee pending the results of an investigation. 

 
Suspensions that are recommended as part of the normal progression of this 
Performance Counseling Policy will be reviewed by the Administrative Services 
Manager, who will provide notification to the General Manager. 
 
Depending on the seriousness of the infraction, the employee may be suspended 
without pay in full-day increments consistent with federal, state and local wage-and-
hour employment laws.  Non-exempt/hourly employees may not substitute or use 
an accrued paid vacation or sick day in lieu of the unpaid suspension.  Due to Fair 
Labor Standards Act (FLSA) compliance issues, unpaid suspension of salaried/exempt 
employees is reserved for serious workplace safety or conduct issues.  HR will 
provide guidance so that the discipline is administered without jeopardizing the FLSA 
exemption status. 
 

5. Discharge – The last and most serious step in progressive discipline is termination.  
However, if the offense is so severe all steps may be waived.  For example, a 
probationary employee may be discharged without going through all of the steps.  
Other severe offenses include, but are not limited to, intoxication or drug abuse 
while on duty, sexual harassment, fights, etc.  Paid administrative leave may be 
provided while an investigation is being conducted.  The Administrative Services 
Manager will review all discharges and provide notification to the General Manager 
prior to the discharge. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 56



 
 

Title: Performance Counseling Policy  
Number: 304 
Effective: December 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-32 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
                             Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-38 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, Report of Performance Counseling Form 
Page 4 of 4 

 
The program is generally administered progressively through the five stages described 
earlier unless individual circumstances merit otherwise.  Such circumstances include 
cases where the violation is of such a serious nature that a written reminder, decision-
making leave, suspension, or discharge is justifiable, even if on a first offense.  This 
policy does not change the “at will” employee’s status. 
 
A copy of the written warning, decision-making leave and suspension shall be placed 
within the employee's personnel file and will not be considered for disciplinary action 
beyond one (1) year from date of the warning, provided there is no additional 
disciplinary action within that period.  If the employee is absent from work for a period 
greater than thirty (30) days, the one (1) year period shall be extended in proportion to 
the amount of time the employee remained absent from work. 
 
In all cases of discharge, demotion or other discipline, the employee involved shall be 
notified, in writing, of the action and the reason for such action. Before imposition of 
discharge, demotion, or unpaid suspension, MTA will provide advance notice of the 
intended disciplinary action. 
 

If the employee is in a union, the employee shall have the right to have a Union Steward 
present at formal disciplinary action, upon request, as stated in the union contracts. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 57



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 4 – Actionable 
Subject:  Update of Special Event Policy (POL-503)     
Prepared by:  Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This policy was last updated in 2016. Edits include proper referencing of citations in 
their entirety, rather than abbreviated versions. The citation in Section 3.2.1 as been 
updated to reference correct citation. 

 
This updated policy has been reviewed by the Policy Review Committee and Legal 
Counsel. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve the revised Special Event Policy (POL-503). 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
  
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve and adopt Resolution 
No. 2020-39 that approves the revised Special Event Policy (POL-503).  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 58



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November September 1720, 202016 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike RinggenbergOliver, Operations 
Development Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202016-3923 

 

Page 1 of 5 

1.0 POL-503 Special Event Service Policy 

This policy applies to all “Special Event Service” requests made by the public, special interest 
groups, and government agencies. All future changes to the Charter Bus Final Rule, drafted, 
approved and implemented by the FTA, shall supersede this policy.    

 
2.0 Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to prevent unfair competition and complaints from recognized 
charter providers in regards to any service performed as a result of a request or proposal that 
could be construed as “Charter Service.” Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA) s Charter Bus 
Service Rule, which implements 49 U.S.C. 5323(d), protects private charter operators from 
unauthorized competition from FTA grant recipients.   

 
3.0 Definitions 

3.1 Charter Service is (1) requested by an outside party (i.e., not the transit system’s 
own idea), (2) provided for exclusive use of some group, and (3) at a negotiated 
price.  

 

3.2 The following information are services not considered to be Charter Service that 
included in the FTA Charter Bus Final Rule: 
 

3.2.1 Demand responsive service – Demand responsive service is not covered 
by the new regulation 49 U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(gc)).  
 

3.2.2 Transit agency business – This allows transit agencies to transport their 
employees, employees of other transit systems, management officials, 
contractors, prospective contractors, or official guests to inspect, 
evaluate, or review transit projects or facilities in the agency’s service 
area (or proposed service area) (49 U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(c)).  

 
3.2.3 Emergency preparedness – This allows transit agencies to transport their 

employees, employees of other transit systems, management officials, 
contractors, prospective contractors, or official guests for emergency 
preparedness planning and operations (49 U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(c)).  

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 59



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November September 1720, 202016 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike RinggenbergOliver, Operations 
Development Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202016-3923 

 

Page 2 of 5 

3.2.4 Section 5310, Section 5311, Job Access/Reverse Commute (JARC), and 
New Freedom programs – Services provided under the Section 5310 
(elderly and persons with disabilities), Section 5311 (rural program), and 
New Freedom programs are not covered by regulation (49 U.S.C. 
5323(d)§604.3(c)).  

 
3.2.5 Emergency response – This allows transit agencies to respond to 

emergency situations, whether declared by federal, state, or local 
officials, or take immediate actions necessary prior to a formal 
declaration for the first 45 days of the emergency situation (continuation 
past the 45 day mark will require formal FTA concurrence (49 U.S.C. 
5323(d)§604.3(c)). 

 
3.2.6 Rural training – This allows rural transit agencies to transport their 

employees and contractors beyond their normal service areas for training 
(49 U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(c)).  

 
3.2.7 Services provided without third party payment or premium fare – Even 

exclusive service on what FTA refers to as an “irregular or limited basis” 
when it is not paid for (in whole or part) by a third party and where riders 
are not required to pay a “premium fare.”  (Appendix A, Q&A 18 and 49 
U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(c)(2)).  

 
4.0 Determination of Exemption 

4.1 Exceptions to the Charter Rule may allow MTA to perform the requested service. 
The following criteria is considered: 
 

4.1.1 Non-transit “government business” – Under this exception, transit 
agencies may provide up to 80 hours per year total service hours, even 
where an agency supports multiple government bodies, of service in 
support of government business such as the City Council visiting a new 
sewage treatment plant site.  
 

4.1.2 Services provided to Qualified Human Services Organizations (QHSO) – 
Whether qualified through one of the 64 federal programs or by 
registering at the web site, QHSO organizations are eligible for free or 
reduced price services under this exception.  There is no hour limit. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 60



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November September 1720, 202016 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike RinggenbergOliver, Operations 
Development Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202016-3923 

 

Page 3 of 5 

 
4.1.3 Leasing equipment to a Registered Charter Provider (RCP) – This  

exception allows transit agencies to lease equipment/drivers to private 
providers, but only when all of the private equipment of all of the RCP 
self-identified as providing service in the agency’s operating area has 
been exhausted.  This provision requires the RCP to certify that all of the 
available vehicles of all registered charter providers in the recipient’s 
geographic service area and for the transit agency to verify that this 
certification is accurate by counting up all of the equipment of all RCPs in 
the area.  
  

4.1.4 Agreement with all RCPs in the area – A transit agency may enter into an 
agreement with all of the RCPs registered in its geographic area.  These 
agreements can allow any lawful use of transit agency equipment 
without regard to the regulation as long as all agree.   
 

4.1.5 RCP responds to a notice – When a transit agency is asked to provide 
charter service that is not subject to an exception and wishes to do so, 
the agency shall consult the FTA internet site to get a list of RCP in the 
geographic service area.  The agency notifies the RCPs of the request for 
service by e-mail or fax and must wait for responses (72 hours for service 
to be provided within 30 days, 14 days for service proposed more than 30 
days out).  If no RCP notes an interest in providing the service, the transit 
agency is free to do so.  If any RCP notes an interest in providing the 
service, the transit agency may not provide it – even if the customer and 
RCP never come to agreement.  
 

4.1.6 Petitions to the Administrator – The FTA recognizes the Administrator’s 
inherent authority to waive or modify the rule and provides 
circumstances where that might happen.  There is a list of required 
information to be submitted in section 604.11.  The first instance is for 
events of national or regional significance.  The regulation requires, 
among other things, that the transit agency certify that all RCPs in the 
area have been “exhausted.”  The second instance is for hardship – 
applicable only in rural or small urban areas and defined as deadhead 
time that exceeds the total trip time.  The third instance is for “unique 
and time sensitive events.”   

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 61



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November September 1720, 202016 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike RinggenbergOliver, Operations 
Development Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202016-3923 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 

5.0 Policy 

5.1 The special event service request must have the potential to generate ridership; 
the requesting entity must agree to provide adequate publicity and promotion to 
ensure that the special event service will be used. 

 
5.2 The event for which special service is considered must be of a broad civic interest 

and open to the general public; the event must not be of a political nature. 
 

5.3 The special event service should provide an opportunity to promote Mason Transit 
Authority (MTA) service to potential users. 

 
5.4 The special event service must address a transportation problem experienced by 

individuals participating in the event, such as parking limitations, severe 
congestion, or for persons with special needs.  Where severe congestion exists, 
clear access and egress to and from the event must be provided to MTA. 

 
5.5 The special event service considered must be open to the general public and 

operate within the boundaries of the Public Transportation Benefit Area during 
existing hours of normal operations. 

 
5.6 Provisions of the special event services shall not conflict with the Federal 

Transportation Administration Final Rule of 2008 implementing 49 U.S.C. 5323(d) 
and any future amendments to the final rule protecting private charter operators 
from unauthorized competition from FTA grant recipients. 

 
5.7 Special Event service can only be considered after careful review of available 

agency equipment and staff for the period requested.   
 

5.8 Special event services may be provided if their cost and operational demand can 
be managed, at no cost to the requestor, in accordance with 49 CFR Part 604, 
Appendix C to Part 604. MTA must be able to provide the special event service 
within the agency geographical operating area and during established operating 
hours or; within our normal “Scope of Work.” 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 62



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November September 1720, 202016 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike RinggenbergOliver, Operations 
Development Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202016-3923 

 

Page 5 of 5 

5.9 Special event service requests which do not meet all of the aforementioned policy 
tests may be considered by the full Board of Directors, should it be determined 
that the request is in the “best” general public interest. 

 
5.10 The special event service request must be received at least 60 days prior to the 

event to be considered. 
 

6.0 References 
 

6.1 Federal Transit Administration Charter Service Rule of December 13, 1982, Title 49 – 
Part 604 (updated March 16, 2016).   
 

6.1.1 This reference implements 49 U.S.C. 5323(d) protecting private charter 
operators from unauthorized competition from recipients of federal 
financial assistance under Federal Transit Laws. 

 
6.1.2 The reference specifies entities that shall comply with the charter service 

regulations; defines terms used; explains procedures for exemption from 
this reference; and sets out the contents of a service agreement. 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 63



Resolution No. 2020-39 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-39 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED SPECIAL EVENT SERVICE POLICY (POL-503) 

AND SUPERSEDING AND REPLACING IN FULL ANY PREVIOUSLY 
ADOPTED OR APPROVED SPECIAL EVENT SERVICE POLICY, 

INCLUDING RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2016-23. 

 
WHEREAS the Special Event Service Policy (POL-503) was originally approved by the 

Mason Transit Authority Board in 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, previously the citations had been abbreviated and now the citations are 
fully referenced, as well as updating the citation in Section 3.2.1; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Special Event Service Policy (POL-503), which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Mason Transit Authority Special Event Service 

Policy (POL-503) shall supersede and replace in full any previously adopted or approved Mason 
Transit Authority Special Event Policy, including rescinding Resolution No. 2016-23. 

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 64



Resolution No. 2020-39 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 65



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-39 

 

Page 1 of 5 

1.0 POL-503 Special Event Service Policy 

This policy applies to all “Special Event Service” requests made by the public, special interest 
groups, and government agencies. All future changes to the Charter Bus Final Rule, drafted, 
approved and implemented by the FTA, shall supersede this policy.    

 
2.0 Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to prevent unfair competition and complaints from recognized 
charter providers in regards to any service performed as a result of a request or proposal that 
could be construed as “Charter Service.” Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA) s Charter Bus 
Service Rule, which implements 49 U.S.C. 5323(d), protects private charter operators from 
unauthorized competition from FTA grant recipients.   

 
3.0 Definitions 

3.1 Charter Service is (1) requested by an outside party (i.e., not the transit system’s 
own idea), (2) provided for exclusive use of some group, and (3) at a negotiated 
price.  

 

3.2 The following information are services not considered to be Charter Service that 
included in the FTA Charter Bus Final Rule: 
 

3.2.1 Demand responsive service – Demand responsive service is not covered 
by the new regulation 49 U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(g).  
 

3.2.2 Transit agency business – This allows transit agencies to transport their 
employees, employees of other transit systems, management officials, 
contractors, prospective contractors, or official guests to inspect, 
evaluate, or review transit projects or facilities in the agency’s service 
area (or proposed service area) 49 U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(c).  

 
3.2.3 Emergency preparedness – This allows transit agencies to transport their 

employees, employees of other transit systems, management officials, 
contractors, prospective contractors, or official guests for emergency 
preparedness planning and operations 49 U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(c).  

 
3.2.4 Section 5310, Section 5311, Job Access/Reverse Commute (JARC), and 

New Freedom programs – Services provided under the Section 5310 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 66



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-39 

 

Page 2 of 5 

(elderly and persons with disabilities), Section 5311 (rural program), and 
New Freedom programs are not covered by regulation 49 U.S.C. 
5323(d)§604.3(c).  

 
3.2.5 Emergency response – This allows transit agencies to respond to 

emergency situations, whether declared by federal, state, or local 
officials, or take immediate actions necessary prior to a formal 
declaration for the first 45 days of the emergency situation (continuation 
past the 45 day mark will require formal FTA concurrence 49 U.S.C. 
5323(d)§604.3(c). 

 
3.2.6 Rural training – This allows rural transit agencies to transport their 

employees and contractors beyond their normal service areas for training 
49 U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(c).  

 
3.2.7 Services provided without third party payment or premium fare – Even 

exclusive service on what FTA refers to as an “irregular or limited basis” 
when it is not paid for (in whole or part) by a third party and where riders 
are not required to pay a “premium fare.”  (Appendix A, Q&A 18 and 49 
U.S.C. 5323(d)§604.3(c)(2).  

 
4.0 Determination of Exemption 

4.1 Exceptions to the Charter Rule may allow MTA to perform the requested service. 
The following criteria is considered: 
 

4.1.1 Non-transit “government business” – Under this exception, transit 
agencies may provide up to 80 hours per year total service hours, even 
where an agency supports multiple government bodies, of service in 
support of government business such as the City Council visiting a new 
sewage treatment plant site.  
 

4.1.2 Services provided to Qualified Human Services Organizations (QHSO) – 
Whether qualified through one of the 64 federal programs or by 
registering at the web site, QHSO organizations are eligible for free or 
reduced price services under this exception.  There is no hour limit. 

 
4.1.3 Leasing equipment to a Registered Charter Provider (RCP) – This  

exception allows transit agencies to lease equipment/drivers to private 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 67



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-39 

 

Page 3 of 5 

providers, but only when all of the private equipment of all of the RCP 
self-identified as providing service in the agency’s operating area has 
been exhausted.  This provision requires the RCP to certify that all of the 
available vehicles of all registered charter providers in the recipient’s 
geographic service area and for the transit agency to verify that this 
certification is accurate by counting up all of the equipment of all RCPs in 
the area.  
  

4.1.4 Agreement with all RCPs in the area – A transit agency may enter into an 
agreement with all of the RCPs registered in its geographic area.  These 
agreements can allow any lawful use of transit agency equipment 
without regard to the regulation as long as all agree.   
 

4.1.5 RCP responds to a notice – When a transit agency is asked to provide 
charter service that is not subject to an exception and wishes to do so, 
the agency shall consult the FTA internet site to get a list of RCP in the 
geographic service area.  The agency notifies the RCPs of the request for 
service by e-mail or fax and must wait for responses (72 hours for service 
to be provided within 30 days, 14 days for service proposed more than 30 
days out).  If no RCP notes an interest in providing the service, the transit 
agency is free to do so.  If any RCP notes an interest in providing the 
service, the transit agency may not provide it – even if the customer and 
RCP never come to agreement.  
 

4.1.6 Petitions to the Administrator – The FTA recognizes the Administrator’s 
inherent authority to waive or modify the rule and provides 
circumstances where that might happen.  There is a list of required 
information to be submitted in section 604.11.  The first instance is for 
events of national or regional significance.  The regulation requires, 
among other things, that the transit agency certify that all RCPs in the 
area have been “exhausted.”  The second instance is for hardship – 
applicable only in rural or small urban areas and defined as deadhead 
time that exceeds the total trip time.  The third instance is for “unique 
and time sensitive events.”   

 

5.0 Policy 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 68



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-39 

 

Page 4 of 5 

5.1 The special event service request must have the potential to generate ridership; 
the requesting entity must agree to provide adequate publicity and promotion to 
ensure that the special event service will be used. 

 
5.2 The event for which special service is considered must be of a broad civic interest 

and open to the general public; the event must not be of a political nature. 
 

5.3 The special event service should provide an opportunity to promote Mason Transit 
Authority (MTA) service to potential users. 

 
5.4 The special event service must address a transportation problem experienced by 

individuals participating in the event, such as parking limitations, severe 
congestion, or for persons with special needs.  Where severe congestion exists, 
clear access and egress to and from the event must be provided to MTA. 

 
5.5 The special event service considered must be open to the general public and 

operate within the boundaries of the Public Transportation Benefit Area during 
existing hours of normal operations. 

 
5.6 Provisions of the special event services shall not conflict with the Federal 

Transportation Administration Final Rule of 2008 implementing 49 U.S.C. 5323(d) 
and any future amendments to the final rule protecting private charter operators 
from unauthorized competition from FTA grant recipients. 

 
5.7 Special Event service can only be considered after careful review of available 

agency equipment and staff for the period requested.   
 

5.8 Special event services may be provided if their cost and operational demand can 
be managed, at no cost to the requestor, in accordance with 49 CFR Part 604, 
Appendix C to Part 604. MTA must be able to provide the special event service 
within the agency geographical operating area and during established operating 
hours or; within our normal “Scope of Work.” 

 
5.9 Special event service requests which do not meet all of the aforementioned policy 

tests may be considered by the full Board of Directors, should it be determined 
that the request is in the “best” general public interest. 

 
5.10 The special event service request must be received at least 60 days prior to the 

event to be considered. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 69



 
 

Title: Special Event Service Policy 
Number: 503 
Effective: November 17, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2016-23 
Prepared by: Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-39 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 
6.0 References 
 

6.1 Federal Transit Administration Charter Service Rule of December 13, 1982, Title 49 – 
Part 604 (updated March 16, 2016).   
 

6.1.1 This reference implements 49 U.S.C. 5323(d) protecting private charter 
operators from unauthorized competition from recipients of federal 
financial assistance under Federal Transit Laws. 

 
6.1.2 The reference specifies entities that shall comply with the charter service 

regulations; defines terms used; explains procedures for exemption from 
this reference; and sets out the contents of a service agreement. 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 70



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 5 – Actionable 
Subject:  Update of Volunteer Driver Program Policy (POL-1000)     
Prepared by:  Haley Dorian, Volunteer Driver Program Coordinator 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This policy was last updated in 2013. Edits have been made to this policy and include 
the following: 
 

• Title changes; 
• New guidelines relating to reimbursement to volunteer drivers; and 
• Volunteer driver review. 

 
This updated policy has been reviewed by the Policy Review Committee and Legal 
Counsel. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve the revised Volunteer Driver Program Policy (POL-1000). 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
  
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve and adopt Resolution 
No. 2020-40 that approves the revised Volunteer Driver Program Policy (POL-1000).  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 71



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 1 of 30 

  
POL-1000 VOLUNTEER DRIVER PROGRAM 
 
1. Philosophy 

 
a. The mission of Mason Transit Authority (MTA) is to provide transportation choices that connect 

people, jobs and community, increasing the quality of life in Mason County.  The utilization of 
volunteers provides a cost-effective means of supporting MTA’s mission.  A well-managed 
volunteer program can contribute to improved quality and quantity of services available to 
Mason County residents.  The Volunteer Driver Program (VDP) provides additional 
transportation options for meeting the needs of our community’s aging population. 

 
2. Purpose 
 

a. It is the purpose of the MTA Volunteer Driver Program to provide transportation services to 
individuals’ age sixty (60) years and above who are determined to be eligible for this service 
under the Washington State Senior Citizens Services Act, and/or provisions of the Older 
Americans Act of 1965, as amended.  

 
b. The VDP is meant to complement existing private and public transportation services. It is not 

meant to provide transportation for individuals who have services/insurance available to pay 
for the requested transportation or to replace the transportation that is already available.   

 
3. Funding 
 

a. The MTA Volunteer Driver Program is made possible through a partnership with, and funds 
awarded from, Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging (LMTAAA); funding is provided 
through the Federal Older Americans Act of 1965, Washington State Senior Citizens Services 
Act, as well as donations from VDP service recipients and MTA match funds. 

 
b. This service is provided to eligible persons up to the point that funds budgeted within a 

calendar year have been exhausted.  This service is not available once this funding has been 
exhausted. The funding is spread across the year in equal quarterly amounts.  The quarters 
are:are January 1 to March 31; April 1 to June 30; July 1 to September 30; and, ending October 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 72



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 2 of 30 

1 to December 31 of each calendar year.  Remaining funds within each quarter shall rollover 
into the consecutive quarter. 

 
c. Persons less than 60 years of age are not eligible to receive funds from the Federal Older 

Americans Act of 1965, as amended, or Washington State Senior Citizens Services Act.  As part 
of the agreement terms between LMTAAA and MTA, match funds are provided, to include, 
when available, funding for service to non-eligible persons.  Service for otherwise non-eligible 
persons will only be provided until funds budgeted within each calendar year has been 
exhausted.  This funding is spread across the year in equal semi-annual amounts, that being: 
January 1 - June 30 and July 1 - December 31 of each calendar year. 

 
d. The Volunteer Driver Program is dependent upon the availability of federal, state and local 

funds provided primarily through LMTAAA and, secondarily, MTA’s match funds under the 
agreement budget.  As such, the program is subject to unilateral reduction should the 
anticipated level of funding become unavailable. 

 
4. Organizational Structure 
 

a. To minimize risk and maximize services to those we serve through volunteer utilization, the 
VDP will be managed by MTA staff, to include, but not limited to, the positions of Office 
Assistant and Outreach Manager Accounting Assistant/, VDP Coordinator, Dispatch/Schedulers, 
and Administrative Services Manager, and said staff will be provided the necessary resources to 
devote to the coordination of volunteer services.   

 
b. An MTA employee will be assigned to the program and is responsible for managing the 

utilization of volunteers. This MTA employee will have a “working title” of Volunteer 
Coordinator. The Volunteer Coordinator will be offered training related to the management of 
volunteers and/or professional development and be encouraged to participate in professional 
organizations to increase management skills of volunteers.  

 
c. The Volunteer Coordinator will be responsible for managing the utilization of volunteers, 

services provided and dispatching of services with oversight provided by the Outreach 
Administrative Services Manager. Responsibilities include:  

 
1. Writing job descriptions for volunteer driver positions  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 73



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 3 of 30 

2. Recruitment, screening, and placement of volunteers  
3. Orientation and coordination of volunteer training 
4. Recognition, support and evaluation of volunteers  
5. Record keeping, including monthly reporting of volunteer miles, hours and trips 
6. Maintain driver and client files ensuring accuracy and confidentiality of records 
7. Knowledge and understanding of the Agency Council on Coordinated Transportation 

(ACCT) Volunteer Drivers - A Guide to Best Practices 
8. Coordination, with the Outreach Manager, of news releases, publicity, etc. 
9.8. Direct supervision of the volunteers 
10.9. This person does not have the working title of supervisor 
11.10. Screening and qualifying clients for uses of services 
11. Responsibly match volunteers with clients and dispatch rides 
12. Ensure adherence to MTA’s Volunteer Driver Program Policy and Procedures 
13. Attend annual contract monitoring visits and provide files as requested, and implementing 

any identified corrective actions, program changes and/or recommendation within 
deadlines. 

 
d. Accounting Assistant will be responsible for accurately preparing the monthly LMTAAA invoice 

and quarterly budget.  
AccountingAssitant will be responsible for accurately preparing the monthly LMTAAA invoice 
and quarterly budget 

  
 

 
d. Outreach Manager will be responsible for the direct supervision of the Volunteer Coordinator. 

Responsibilities include:  
 

1. Ensure adherence to MTA’s Volunteer Driver Program Policy and Procedures 
2. Ensure adherence to the LMTAAA contract terms  
3. Knowledge and understanding of the Agency Council on Coordinated Transportation 

(ACCT) Volunteer Drivers - A Guide to Best Practices 
4. Ensuring completion and accuracy of Volunteer Coordinators responsibilities 
5. Attend annual contract monitoring visits and provide files as requested, and implementing 

any identified corrective actions, program changes and/or recommendation within 
deadlines 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 74



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 4 of 30 

  
e. Accounting Specialist will be responsible for accurately preparing the monthly LMTAAA invoice 

and quarterly budget. 
 

f.e. Administrative Services Manager Finance Manager will be responsible for direct supervision of 
the Accounting SpecialistAssistant.  Responsibilities include: 

 
1. Ensuring completion and accuracy of Accounting Assistant responsibilities.Ensure 

accuracy of Accounting Specialists responsibilitie 
6.2. sKnowledge and understanding of the Agency Council on Coordinated Transportation 

(ACCT) Volunteer Drivers - A Guide to Best Practices 
7.3. Ensure adherence to the LMTAAA contract terms 
8.4. Preparation of the annual contract program budget and staffing plan 

 
5. Target Population 
 

a. The target population criteria for the VDP is in accordance with the agreement terms and 
conditions established between LMTAAA and MTA and as outlined in program standards of the 
Aging and Long Term Support Administration Policy and Procedures Manual for Area Agency on 
Aging Operations, which is persons who: 

 
1. Do not own a vehicle, or 
2. Cannot operate a vehicle, or 
3. Cannot afford to drive, and 
4. Cannot use public transportation, or 
5. Public transportation is not accessible or available to them. 

 
6. Eligibility Determination 
 

a. Qualified persons eligible to receive volunteer services are defined in accordance with Older 
Americans Act of 1965, as amended (OAA), and the Washington State Senior Citizens Services 
Act (SCSA), which are persons over the age of 60 who, because of financial or physical 
incapacity, have no appropriate means of transportation available to them; and as outlined in 
the Target Population Criteria according to the program standards of the Aging and Long Term 
Support Administration Policy and Procedures Manual for Area Agency on Aging Operations. In 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 75



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 5 of 30 

addition, persons who receive volunteer services must be a resident of Mason County.  
Eligibility is determined through use of the Participant Information Form (see Appendix A). 

 
b. Requests for services received by persons less than 60 years of age are not eligible under the 

Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging Contract.  When such inquiries are received, MTA 
will provide services on a first come, first served basis, (and if funding is still available) if the 
person: 

 
1. Does not own a vehicle, or 
2. Cannot operate a vehicle, and 
3. Cannot use public transportation, or 
4. Public transportation is not accessible or available to them. 

 
7. Service Prioritization 
 

a. To best serve the community with limited funding, and operate within the allotted annual 
budget of the Volunteer Driver Program, MTA will provide volunteer driver services to 
individuals primarily for medical trips, to out-of-county destinations and on an, as needed, 
assessed priority basis.   
 

1. Trips provided will be for the purpose of medical care.  Essential errands may be provided 
in conjunction with a medical trip only if it does not require going more than five miles 
from the pick-up point, destination pointpoint, or roads traveled between the two points.   
 

2. Trip destinations must be outside of Mason County, unless the person is seeking life-
sustaining medical treatment in Mason County and public transportation is not accessible 
or available to them.  Life sustaining is defined as treatments which discontinuation would 
result in death, such as: dialysis, chemo/radiation therapy, surgery, ventilators, antibiotics 
or other medical procedures.  

 
3. Priority status will be defined in accordance with the OAA and SCSA, which states that 

priority will be given vulnerable, low-income, minority and/or limited English speaking 
elderly, as well as those meeting target population criteria as outlined in program 
standards of the Aging and Long Term Support Administration Policy and Procedures 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 76



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 6 of 30 

Manual for Area Agency on Aging Operations.  Priority is assessed using a Participant 
Information Form and VDP Priority Determination Form (see Appendix A and B). 

 
4. Service priority will be given, as needed, to persons who have been assessed to have a 

priority status.  Meaning, every effort will be made to use the funding allotted within each 
quarter in a manner to sustain the same level of service through the entirety of the 
quarter for persons with a priority status.  Therefore, persons with priority status will have 
precedence for services provided through the Volunteer Driver Program. 
 

5. Trips will only be allowed to be scheduled up to two weeks in advance from the date the 
person makes a request. 

 
8. Service Definition 
 

a. Volunteer drivers perform their functions on behalf of or under the direction of the agency 
seeking their services.  While the volunteer's vehicle is in use on agency directed business, the 
vehicle is considered a mobile work site and the volunteer an agent of the agency.  The scope of 
the volunteer driver's relationship with the agency should be limited to the purposes of 
transporting and escorting (as needed) clients to and from medical services. Volunteer drivers 
in this program drive their own cars and receive reimbursement for expenses incurred, as 
follows: 

 
1. Tolls and parking will be reimbursed for the actual values per proof of receipts provided..  

If the cost item exceeds two dollars, the driver should submit a receipt with the claim. 
2. Drivers should attempt to control program costs by scheduling their meals around trips 

and furnishing their own snack lunches.  However, meals are a reimbursable cost if 
unforeseen delays occur and the trip exceeds four hours.  Volunteers will be reimbursed 
according to GSA current per diem rates. Rates can be found at 
https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-
lookup/?action=perdiems_report&state=WA&fiscal_year=2021&zip=&city=i.  Cost 
reimbursement for meals shall not: 

3.  exceed $30.00 a day; or  
$6.00 for meals before 12:00 P.M.,  
$10.00 for meals between 12:00 P.M. and 6:00 P.M. and 

4.2.  $14.00 for meals after 6:00 P.M. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 77



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 7 of 30 

5.3. Mileage is variable with the cost of fuel.  MTA will set the mileage reimbursement rate 
and so inform the drivers prior to any commitment of the trip.  The mileage allowance 
shall not exceed the IRS reimbursable level. 

6. MTA will not reimburse drivers for fines resulting from illegal operation of the vehicle, i.e., 
traffic or parking violations. 
 

4. Meal Reimbursement Policy is as follows: MTA will only accept: 
Meals will only be reimbursed when volunteering for at least a four (4) hour time period.  
Also, please note that: 

i. Meals are reimbursed only for the volunteer. 
ii. Meal reimbursements are not authorized for spouses, significant others or clients. 

iii. MTA does not reimburse for tobacco or alcohol products. 
 

5. Incidental Expenses Policy is as follows: In addition to meals, MTA will reimburse for 
incidental travel expenses related to the non-automobile costs the volunteer incurs.  
Examples are: 

a. Parking 
b. Highway and/or bridge tolls 
c. Ferry Tolls 
d. MTA will reimburse for motel/hotel expenses, pre-authorized, as a result of 

inclement weather conditions or emergency circumstances. 
 

In the case of any of the approved incidental expenses listed above, the expenses must be 
documented by original receipts that correspond to the time span of the authorized trip. 

 
        Automobile expenses that will not be reimbursed include:  

a. Traffic fines 
b. Parking fines 
c. Towing charges 
d. Gasoline, etc. 

 
9.  Minimum Requirements for the Volunteer Driver Program 

 
a. Insurance Coverage - Each person volunteering his/her services and his/her vehicles in the 

Volunteer Driver Program shall meet the State requirements as to motor vehicle policy or bond, 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 78



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 8 of 30 

as the volunteer's personal insurance is the primary liability protection.  The following minimum 
coverage is recommended by the State of Washington in the Revised Code of Washington (RCW 
46.29.090): 

 
1. $25,000 bodily injury, each person 
2. $50,000 bodily injury, each accident 
3. $10,000 property damage 

 
Volunteers will provide proof of coverage that will be satisfactory to the transportation 
provider.  MTA will maintain excess automobile insurance which supplements auto insurance 
coverage for each volunteer driving his/her own vehicle. 

 
b. Volunteer Driver Selection - Transportation providers offering a volunteer transportation 

component should assure that the volunteer drivers are reliable and able to drive safely.  If at 
any time MTA deems that a volunteer driver is not performing his/her duties in a safe and 
reliable manner, at the sole discretion of MTA no further volunteer services will be assigned, 
including those that have been ongoing, pending determination by the  volunteer coordinator.  
Selection of volunteer drivers will be based upon the following criteria: 

1. Prospective volunteer should have an appropriate and valid Washington State driver's 
license. 

2. Assurance that the prospective volunteer has a safe driving record; at a minimum the 
volunteer should have had no at-fault accidents or moving violations in the past three 
years. 

3. Assurance that prospective volunteer has no criminal history record or record of Child or 
Adult abuse.  

4. Assurance that prospective volunteer has State established minimum required insurance 
coverage. 

5. Assurance by prospective volunteer that his/her vehicle is mechanically sound. 
6. Assurance by prospective volunteer that he/she is physically capable of safely driving their 

vehicle and that medications are not being taken that affect driving ability.  Additional 
assurance may be requested in the form of a letter provided by the volunteer’s physician. 

7. Assurance that prospective volunteer's vehicle has seat belts; that the volunteer will use 
seat-beltsseatbelts at all times and will require compliance by their passenger(s) of 
Washington State Laws regarding the wearing of seat belts. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 79



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 9 of 30 

8. Assurance by the prospective volunteer that he/she will maintain required records, (e.g., 
verification of trip records.) 

9. Assurance that the prospective volunteer will refrain from accepting any donations from 
clients.  Self-addressed envelopes are provided for clients wanting to make voluntary 
donations which protects the client’s right to confidentialityconfidentiality, and which 
safeguards the funds from theft or fraud. 

10. A “Statement of Understanding” is executed and acknowledged with their signature. 
11. Assurance that the prospective volunteer will maintain the conditions of his/her selection 

in Section 9; paragraph B, items 1-11, as listed above. 
 

c. Volunteers Driver Orientation - The agency should provide orientation to volunteers prior to 
their providing service (see Appendix C, Exhibits A-F).  
 
Orientation will include: 

1. Information about the agency 
2. The purpose of the Volunteer Transportation Program 
3. The role volunteers play in the Transit System 
4. Review of the program policy and procedures 
5. An explanation of the job description, reporting and evaluation process 

 
d. Volunteers rights and responsibilities - The agency should provide information volunteers with 

information during orientation regarding theirs rights and responsibilities. 
 
Rights and Responsibilities of Volunteers include:  

1. To maintain their vehicle in safe operating condition 
2. To assure the use of seat-beltsseatbelts by passengers and volunteer 
3. To maintain client confidentiality 
4. To maintain the client's right to self-determination 
5. To exercise due care in operating the motor vehicle 
6. To notify the agency in the event of an accident 
7. To appropriately use Disabled Parking Permit 
8. Reimbursement for allowable expenses incurred 
9. Reporting requirements 
10. Evaluation 
11. Agency contact and supervision 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 80



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 10 of 30 

 
e. Volunteers Driver Training – Volunteers should be provided with the appropriate training to 

conduct services in a safe manner. Mandatory training to be completed within sixty (60) days 
following the initial driving assignment: 

1. Passenger Assistance & Sensitivity Training (ADAPT or PASS) 
2. Defensive Driving Course 

 
Special training opportunities are strongly encouraged for: 

1. CPR/First-AidFirst Aid 
  

The agency will encourage the program to coordinate training with other community programs 
in order to maximize the volunteer's knowledge about the integration with the area service 
delivery system.  Cost of such training will be reimbursed by MTA. 
 

f. Volunteer Driver Review - On an annual basis, each volunteer driver will be reviewed in 
conference to: 

1. Update application information with regard to name, address and emergency contact 
2. Driver’s license information 
3. At-fault accidents and traffic violations monitored through Envision.  
4. Vehicle information and vehicle inspection 
5. Periodic Status Check on Volunteer Health status 
6. Confidentiality Agreement Certification statement 
7.6. Review performance by conducting a ride-a-long driver evaluation and review of job 

responsibilities 
 

If at any time the volunteer driver is found to have not maintained the conditions of his/her 
selection as defined in Section 9; paragraph B, items 1-11, as well as pass their annual review as 
defined in Section 9; paragraph F, items 1-7, then the driver will be suspended from provided 
services until the item(s) are in compliance with this policy. If a volunteer driver is out do to 
their own medical conditioncondition, then they will be asked to provide a release from their 
doctor okaying them to drive before returning to the program. 

 
Any accident or reportable incident involving a volunteer performing agency-sponsored activity 
should be reported and investigated immediately by the agency.  A report of the accident 
should be filed in the volunteer's personnel file. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 81



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 11 of 30 

  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 82



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 12 of 30 

APPENDIX A 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 83



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 13 of 30 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 84



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 14 of 30 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 85



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 15 of 30 

 
 
APPENDIX B       
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 86



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 16 of 30 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 87



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 17 of 30  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 88



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 18 of 30 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 89



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 19 of 30 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 90



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 20 of 30 

 
APPENDIX C              
 
EXHIBIT A - DRIVER CONDUCT 
 

1. All volunteer drivers will act in a professional manner at all times. 
2. Reports of staff or volunteer driver misconduct will be cause for immediate suspension from 

client service.  Confirmation of misconduct shall be cause for removal of the volunteer driver 
involved from serving clients.  Mason Transit Authority (MTA) may be required to report all 
incidents to the state or federal funding agencies. 

3. If the state funding agency and/or MTA receives complaints regarding any volunteer driver 
transporting riders, and/or it is determined that the volunteer driver is not performing  the 
service in a safe, reliable or responsible manner and corrective action has not resulted in 
improved performance, MTA will remove the volunteer driver from service to riders. 

4. If any volunteer is suspended from service due to complaints or a determination that the 
person is not performing the service in a safe, reliable and responsible manner, they will not 
return to service until MTA has developed a plan of improvement. 

5. Volunteers shall perform the following minimum levels of service; A volunteer driver shall:  
 

a. Wear, or have visible, easy to read proper organizational identification; 
b. As appropriate to the needs of the rider, exit the vehicle to open and close doors when 

passengers enter or exit the vehicle and provide assistance as necessary to or from the 
main door of the place of destination; 

c. Properly identify and announce their presence at the entrance of the   building at the 
specified pick-up location if a curbside pick-up is not apparent, or with attending facility 
staff; 

d. Assist the passengers in the process of being seated, including the fastening of the seat 
belt, when necessitated by the rider’s condition; 

e. Confirm, prior to allowing any vehicle to proceed, that all passengers are properly secured 
in their seat belts; 

f. Provide an appropriate level of assistance to passengers, when requested, or when 
necessitated by a passenger’s condition; 

g. Provide support and direction to passengers.  Such assistance shall also apply to the 
movement of wheelchairs and mobility-limited persons as they enter or exit a facility or 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 91



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 21 of 30 

vehicle as applicable.  Such assistance shall also include stowage by the driver of mobility 
aids and folding wheelchairs; 

h. Be clean and maintain a neat appearance at all times; 
i. Be polite and courteous to riders; riders shall be treated with respect and in a culturally 

appropriate manner when receiving transportation services.  MTA will notify the 
volunteer driver of any known cultural issues significant to providing transportation 
services; and, 

j. Respect passengers’ rights to confidentiality. 
 

6. A volunteer driver shall not: 
 

a. Make sexually explicit comments, or solicit sexual favors, or engage in sexual activity; 
b. Solicit or accept controlled substances, alcohol, or medications from riders; 
c. Solicit or accept money from riders; 
d. Use alcohol, narcotics or controlled substances, or be under the influence, while 

performing as a volunteer driver.  Prescribed medication can be used by a driver as long as 
his/her responsibilities as a volunteer driver can still be performed in a safe manner and 
MTA has written documentation that medication will not impact the ability of the driver; 

e. Eat or consume any beverage while operating the vehicle or while involved in rider 
assistance; 

f. Smoke in the vehicle when riders are present.  This rule also applies to clients and a 
client’s escort; 

g. Wear any type of headphones while performing as a volunteer driver; 
h. Be responsible for passengers’ personal items. 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 92



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 22 of 30 

EXHIBIT B - CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

1. The principal of confidentiality is basic to the maintenance of professional ethics and 
community respect.  All staff and volunteers of MTA have a set of ethical responsibilities by 
which they are bound to the rider, the community and themselves. MTA riders act in good 
faith, expecting their circumstances and personal matters to remain confidential and MTA is 
obligated by law and ethics to reciprocate.  Confidentiality of rider information is maintained 
for the protection of the rider and for MTA. 

 
2. Staff members, including volunteers, will use the following procedures.  For the purposes of 

these procedures a “rider” is defined as a person registered as a program participant.  
Registration is accomplished by completion of a Participant Information Form (PIF). 

 
a. All staff members will take responsibility for protecting the confidentiality of all riders and 

sign a confidentiality form to be maintained in their personnel file.  New staff members 
will receive instruction in these confidentiality procedures. 

b. All written and unwritten information concerning riders of MTA are considered as 
confidential. 

c. All written information regarding the riders of MTA will be maintained in files.  Only those 
staff members with a “need to know” will have access to these files.  No staff member 
may remove rider files from the office without authorization from the staff member’s 
supervisor. 

d. When it is necessary for a member of the staff to communicate information about a rider 
to another person or agency, an Authorization to Obtain/Release Information Form will be 
signed by the rider or their legal representative.  The signed release will be kept in the 
rider’s permanent record.  If the rider is unable to give written consent, then the staff 
member releasing the information will document the circumstances. 

e. When rider-related materials, i.e., lists, log and files are used outside the office, staff 
members are responsible and must take appropriate steps to safeguard the materials. 

f. In emergency situations, when it is not possible to have a form signed, a verbal release 
may be given by the rider or their legal representative.  The staff member who receives 
the verbal release will make a note in the rider’s file and will obtain the written release as 
soon as possible. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 93



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 23 of 30 

g. A signed release will not be needed when, in general, personal information shall not be 
used or disclosed by any person or organization without the informed consent of the 
individual who is the subject or the information. 

h. When MTA staff is working with a rider and finds it necessary to obtain written 
information from another person or agency, it will be necessary to obtain a signed release 
from the rider or representative.  This release will indicate that the rider or representative 
has given permission for release of information to MTA. 

i. When MTA staff either receives requested written information or releases written 
information about a rider to another person or agency, a written or verbal follow-up will 
be given to the rider.  This follow-up will inform the rider as to what information was 
released or obtained and what progress has been made in helping with his/her individual 
situation.  A record of the follow-up will be kept in the rider’s file. 

j. When MTA staff receives unsolicited information from the rider, the staff member may 
legally need to share that information, e.g., suspected abuse.  The staff member may also 
ask the rider for permission to make an appropriate referral, i.e., Gatekeeper function.  

k. When MTA staff receives unsolicited information about a rider from family members, 
Gatekeepers, etc., the staff member may share the information with the rider.  
Professional judgment will determine what to share. 

l. The fact that a situation has been made public through any of the new media does not 
alter the fact that this person still has confidentiality privileges with MTA.  For example, if 
a rider has been having difficulties with a given problem and is arrested, MTA 
confidentially procedures will be maintained. 

  
3. The major exception to this policy is that the information may be used for purposes directly 

connected with the administration of the program that has collected the information.  Such 
purposes include, but are not necessarily limited to; determining eligibility, providing the 
services and participating in audits of the program.  An example of using personal information 
in the course of providing a service would be staff member giving the name and other 
necessary information about an individual desiring a specific service to an organization than can 
provide that service. 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 94



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 24 of 30 

EXHIBIT C - DONATIONS 
 

1. Persons who receive services funded by Title III of the Older Americans Act must be given a free 
and voluntary opportunity to contribute to the cost of services provided.  The same opportunity 
must be extended to persons who receive SCSA-funded services that are not subject to a means 
test. Other persons in need of special transportation regardless of funding source should be 
afforded similar opportunities, as the persons in the categories above. The service provider 
must protect each person’s privacy with respect to his or her contribution, establish procedures 
to safeguard and account for all contributions made by users of the service and use all such 
contributions to expand the service that received the contribution.  
 

2. Envelopes are provided by Volunteer Drivers for the purpose of ensuring confidentiality.  
 

3.  MTA will not differentiate among individuals based on their ability, or inability to make a 
donation.  No otherwise eligible person may be denied service because he/she will not or 
cannot contribute to the cost of service. 

 
4. Volunteer drivers are not allowed to receive donations.  In order to assure that riders are 

afforded the opportunities described above, they may be mailed a detailed accounting of 
volunteer trips provided, length of the trip, and a suggested donation rate.  Those factors may 
be totaled in the form of an aggregate suggested donation.  A copy of the aggregate accounting 
can be sent to persons who have agreed to pay for the transportation services.  Included are 
family members, personal representatives, friends, and agencies that have agreed to pay at the 
suggested donation rate. 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 95



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 25 of 30 

EXHIBIT D - ABUSE, NEGLECT, ABANDONMENT & EXPLOITATION 
 

1. Volunteers will be trained to report concerns immediately to the office of the Department of 
Social & Health Services that is responsible for Adult Protective Services and provided with ana 
report form upon orientation. The staff member, including volunteers, shall also report 
concerns to his/her supervisor and/or Volunteer Driver Coordinator to receive further 
instructions as needed.  People in certain professions are mandated to report suspected abuse, 
neglect, exploitation or abandonment of persons sixty (60) years of age or older who have a 
functional, mental, or physical inability to care for or protect themselves.  Persons who are 
required to report must call Adult Protective Services immediately and follow-up with a written 
report within ten (10) days.  Those mandated to report include:   

 
a. Police officers 
b. Social workers 
c. Employees/Volunteers of welfare, mental health, or health agencies, or congregate care 

long-term care facilities 
d. Licensed health care providers 
e. Employees of the Department of Social & Health Services 
f. Employees of social service agencies 

 
2. Abuse and neglect of older persons includes several categories of acts and/or omissions 

generally referred to as abuse, neglect, exploitation and abandonment.  Signs of potential 
abuse or neglect include an elderly person: 

 
a. with bruises, welts or burns or evidence of physical restraints; 
b. who appears over- or under-medicated; 
c. with inadequate food or water, or with unclean clothes or bedding; 
d. whose caregiver abuses alcohol or in emotionally unstable; 
e. who previously has had excellent credit or resources but now seems unable to meet 

expenses; 
f. whose caregiver is under severe stress such as illness, unemployment of family problems’ 
g. living in a family with a history of violence such as child or spouse abuse; and 
h. who is not permitted visitors or direct, private communication with others. 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 96



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 26 of 30 

3. Definitions 
 

a. Abuse:  An act of physical or mental mistreatment or injury that harms or threatens a 
person through action or inaction by another individual.  Abuse may be physical, sexual, 
verbal or emotional.  “Medical” abuse refers to over-medication or withholding of 
medications or other needed assistance in order to control the older person. Signs of 
abuse: 

i. Suspicious bruising or other injuries to arms, face or head 
ii. Marks from tying or other restraints 

iii. Purposeful isolation 
iv. Unwarranted sedation 
v. Withholding of food, water or medication (without consent) 

vi. Unexplained depression or anxiety 
 

b. Neglect:  A pattern of conduct resulting in deprivation of care necessary to maintain 
minimum physical and mental health.  Neglect occurs when a caregiver does not provide 
enough care and support to meet the person’s individual needs for physical emotional 
well-being.  (The situation may be “self-neglect” when the needs of an older person are 
not being met, but here is not an identified caregiver.) Signs of neglect: 

i. Inadequate food or water 
ii. Un-cleanliness 

iii. Serious bedsores 
iv. Social isolation 
v. Lack of proper medical or dental care or equipment 

vi. Unsanitary conditions 
vii. Unpaid bills 

viii. Untreated mental illness 
 

c. Exploitation:  Illegal or improper use of a vulnerable adult or that adult’s resources for 
another person’s profit or advantage.  Exploitation may involve obtaining access to and 
misusing an older person’s income, financial resources or real property, obtaining money 
fraudulently, charging for services not provided, misuse of a Power of Attorney, and 
emotional pressure to change a will to sign over property. Signs of exploitation: 

i. Sudden change in an older person’s spending habits 
ii. Unexplained loss of resources or valuables 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 97



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 27 of 30 

iii. Overdrawn accounts 
iv. Loss checks or passbooks 
v. Unusual or suspicious withdrawals from bank 

vi. An unfit person moving in 
vii. Sudden quit-claim deeds of property 

viii. Suspicious or unauthorized use of an older person’s credit card 
 

d. Abandonment:  Leaving a vulnerable adult without the means to obtain food, clothing, 
shelter or health care.  This form of abuse involves a recognized caregiver who has been 
giving regular and substantial care to an older person, and willfully discontinues the care 
without assuring adequate replacement or giving appropriate notice to responsible 
parties. Signs of abandonment: 

i. Sudden departure of caregiver 
ii. No movement in or around an older person’s home 

iii. No answer to telephone 
iv. Uncollected mail or newspapers piling up 
v. Older person suddenly discontinuing routine social contacts 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 98



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 28 of 30 

EXHIBIT E – REPORTING  
 

1. Volunteers are required to report services provided, to include:include date trip provided, 
person served, pick-up and destination address, mileage, trips and hours.  Reports are required 
to be accurate and submitted on the first day of each month for the previous month’s service 
provision. 

 

            
 
 
 

                                

Date Passenger & Address Odometer Start Odometer Stop Total Miles Destination 1-Way Trips Trip Purpose Hours

                     VOLUNTEER DRIVER TRAVEL EXPENSE CLAIM FORM

JANE DOE GROUP HEALTH

123 DOLLY LANE 26354 26420 66 700 LILLY ROAD 2 A-A 3

SHELTON, WA 98584 LEAVE HOME RETURN HOME OLYMPIA, WA 98584

3/26/2010

3/29/2010

JOHN SMITH W.W. ONCOLOGY

123 DEER RD 26615 26764 149 4525 3RD AVE OLYMPIA, WA 3 A-C-A 5

BELFAIR, WA 98528 FRED MEYER IN SHELTON

3/29/2010

3/20/2010

SALLY AND JOE SMITH VISTA CARE ONCOLOGY

321 MICKEY MOUSE RD 26764 26909 145 141 LILLY RD OLYMPIA, WA 6 AA-CC-AA 5

BELFAIR, WA 98528 QFC IN BELFAIR

3/20/2010

3/20/2010

JANE DOE DOCTORS CLINIC

123 DOLLY LANE 26955 2526 WHEATON WAY

SHELTON, WA 98584 BREMERTON, WA

3/20/2010

3/20/2010

SALLY SMITH DOCTORS CLINIC

321 MICKEY MOUSE RD 27125 170 2526 WHEATON WAY 4 AA-AA 3

BELFAIR, WA 98528 BREMERTON, WA

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the information provided is true and correct; Trip Purpose Legend Office Use Only
and that no part of this claim has been/will be paid by any other agency or individual. Enter Corresponding Letter for Each Trip Purpose Total Miles

in Trip Purpose Column Mileage Rate  x          
Date __________ Mileage Reimbursement $

A - Medical Other reimbursed expenses +
B - Adult Daycare +
C - Essential Errands

City                                                                        State                  Zip D - Social Services Total Reimbursement       = $
E - Nutrition
F - Employment

Mail or deliver to: G - Recreation Total  1-Way Trips
Mason Transit Authority H - Education Total Volunteer Hours
790 E John's Prairie Rd
PO Box 1880 # of trip purposes must equate # of 1-way trips
Shelton WA  98584
(360) 426-9434 or  (800) 281-9434 Approval Signature

Signature _SIGNATURE REQUIRED TO PROCESS CLAIM FORM!_____

Address  _____________________________________________________________________

 

3/20/2010

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 99



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 29 of 30 

 
 
 
EXHIBIT F - VOLUNTEER DRIVER EXPENSES 
 
1. Meal Reimbursement Policy is as follows: MTA will only accept: 

a. Original restaurant meal receipts – or – 
b. Original grocery store/convenience store receipts for prepared, ready-to-eat food items 

that will be eaten by the volunteer driver immediately.  Any extra items for spouses or 
clients will not be reimbursed nor will additional food items be reimbursed, such as 
cartons of ice cream, canned goods or food items. 

c. Reimbursement cannot be paid when Food Stamps are used to pay for reimbursable meal 
expenses at restaurants or for reimbursable ready-to-eat food items purchased from 
grocery stores/convenience stores. 

d. All receipts must have a date and time on them that corresponds to the time span of the 
authorized trip. 

e. Receipts for meals will only be reimbursed when volunteering for at least a four (4) hour 
time period.  Also, please note that: 

i. Meals are reimbursed only for the volunteer. 
ii. Meal reimbursements are not authorized for spouses, significant others or clients. 

iii. MTA does not reimburse for tobacco or alcohol products. 
 
2. Incidental Expenses Policy is as follows: In addition to meals, MTA will reimburse for incidental 

travel expenses related to the non-automobile costs the volunteer incurs.  Examples are: 
a. Parking 
b. Highway and/or bridge tolls 
c. Ferry Tolls 
d. MTA will reimburse for motel/hotel expenses, pre-authorized, as a result of inclement 

weather conditions or emergency circumstances. 
 

In the case of either one (1) or two (2) above, the expenses must be documented by original 
receipts that correspond to the time span of the authorized trip. 

 
3. Automobile expenses that will not be reimbursed include :include:  

a. Traffic fines 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 100



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: 12/17/13 12/1/2020December 1, 2020 
Cancels: 08/06/2006; 06/18/2013; 
12/17/13Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Christina KramerHaley Dorian, Outreach 
Manager  Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2013-26 No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 30 of 30 

b. Parking fines 
c. Towing charges 
d. Gasoline, etc. 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 101



Resolution No. 2020-40 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-40 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED VOLUNTEER DRIVER PROGRAM POLICY 
(POL-1000) AND SUPERSEDING AND REPLACING IN FULL ANY 

PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED OR APPROVED VOLUNTEER DRIVER PROGRAM 
POLICY, INCLUDING RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2013-26. 

 
WHEREAS, the Volunteer Driver Program Policy (POL-1000) was last updated in 2013; 

and 

 WHEREAS, edits have been made relating to staff title changes, new guidelines relating 
to reimbursement to volunteer drivers and volunteer driver reviews;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Volunteer Driver Program Policy (POL-1000), which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Mason Transit Authority Volunteer Driver 

Program Policy (POL-1000) shall supersede and replace in full any previously adopted or 
approved Mason Transit Authority Volunteer Driver Program Policy, including rescinding 
Resolution No. 2013-26. 
 

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 102



Resolution No. 2020-40 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 103



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 1 of 20 

  
POL-1000 VOLUNTEER DRIVER PROGRAM 
 
1. Philosophy 

 
a. The mission of Mason Transit Authority (MTA) is to provide transportation choices that connect 

people, jobs and community, increasing the quality of life in Mason County.  The utilization of 
volunteers provides a cost-effective means of supporting MTA’s mission.  A well-managed 
volunteer program can contribute to improved quality and quantity of services available to 
Mason County residents.  The Volunteer Driver Program (VDP) provides additional 
transportation options for meeting the needs of our community’s aging population. 

 
2. Purpose 
 

a. It is the purpose of the MTA Volunteer Driver Program to provide transportation services to 
individuals’ age sixty (60) years and above who are determined to be eligible for this service 
under the Washington State Senior Citizens Services Act, and/or provisions of the Older 
Americans Act of 1965, as amended.  

 
b. The VDP is meant to complement existing private and public transportation services. It is not 

meant to provide transportation for individuals who have services/insurance available to pay 
for the requested transportation or to replace the transportation that is already available.   

 
3. Funding 
 

a. The MTA Volunteer Driver Program is made possible through a partnership with, and funds 
awarded from, Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging (LMTAAA); funding is provided 
through the Federal Older Americans Act of 1965, Washington State Senior Citizens Services 
Act, as well as donations from VDP service recipients and MTA match funds. 

 
b. This service is provided to eligible persons up to the point that funds budgeted within a 

calendar year have been exhausted.  This service is not available once this funding has been 
exhausted. The funding is spread across the year in equal quarterly amounts.  The quarters are 
January 1 to March 31; April 1 to June 30; July 1 to September 30; and, ending October 1 to 
December 31 of each calendar year.  Remaining funds within each quarter shall rollover into 
the consecutive quarter. 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 104



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 2 of 20 

c. Persons less than 60 years of age are not eligible to receive funds from the Federal Older 
Americans Act of 1965, as amended, or Washington State Senior Citizens Services Act.  As part 
of the agreement terms between LMTAAA and MTA, match funds are provided, to include, 
when available, funding for service to non-eligible persons.  Service for otherwise non-eligible 
persons will only be provided until funds budgeted within each calendar year has been 
exhausted.  This funding is spread across the year in equal semi-annual amounts, that being: 
January 1 - June 30 and July 1 - December 31 of each calendar year. 

 
d. The Volunteer Driver Program is dependent upon the availability of federal, state and local 

funds provided primarily through LMTAAA and, secondarily, MTA’s match funds under the 
agreement budget.  As such, the program is subject to unilateral reduction should the 
anticipated level of funding become unavailable. 

 
4. Organizational Structure 
 

a. To minimize risk and maximize services to those we serve through volunteer utilization, the 
VDP will be managed by MTA staff, to include, but not limited to, the positions of Accounting 
Assistant, VDP Coordinator, Dispatch/Schedulers, and Administrative Services Manager, and 
said staff will be provided the necessary resources to devote to the coordination of volunteer 
services.   

 
b. An MTA employee will be assigned to the program and is responsible for managing the 

utilization of volunteers. This MTA employee will have a “working title” of Volunteer 
Coordinator. The Volunteer Coordinator will be offered training related to the management of 
volunteers and/or professional development and be encouraged to participate in professional 
organizations to increase management skills of volunteers.  

 
c. The Volunteer Coordinator will be responsible for managing the utilization of volunteers, 

services provided and dispatching of services with oversight provided by the Administrative 
Services Manager. Responsibilities include:  

 
1. Writing job descriptions for volunteer driver positions  
2. Recruitment, screening, and placement of volunteers  
3. Orientation and coordination of volunteer training 
4. Recognition, support and evaluation of volunteers  
5. Record keeping, including monthly reporting of volunteer miles, hours and trips 
6. Maintain driver and client files ensuring accuracy and confidentiality of records 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 105



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 3 of 20 

7. Knowledge and understanding of the Agency Council on Coordinated Transportation 
(ACCT) Volunteer Drivers - A Guide to Best Practices 

8. Direct supervision of the volunteers 
9. This person does not have the working title of supervisor 
10. Screening and qualifying clients for uses of services 
11. Responsibly match volunteers with clients and dispatch rides 
12. Ensure adherence to MTA’s Volunteer Driver Program Policy and Procedures 
13. Attend annual contract monitoring visits and provide files as requested, and implementing 

any identified corrective actions, program changes and/or recommendation within 
deadlines. 

 
d. Accounting Assistant will be responsible for accurately preparing the monthly LMTAAA invoice 

and quarterly budget.  
 

e. Administrative Services Manager will be responsible for direct supervision of the Accounting 
Assistant.  Responsibilities include: 

1. Ensuring completion and accuracy of Accounting Assistant responsibilities. 
2. Knowledge and understanding of the Agency Council on Coordinated Transportation 

(ACCT) Volunteer Drivers - A Guide to Best Practices 
3. Ensure adherence to the LMTAAA contract terms 
4. Preparation of the annual contract program budget and staffing plan 

 
5. Target Population 
 

a. The target population criteria for the VDP is in accordance with the agreement terms and 
conditions established between LMTAAA and MTA and as outlined in program standards of the 
Aging and Long Term Support Administration Policy and Procedures Manual for Area Agency on 
Aging Operations, which is persons who: 

 
1. Do not own a vehicle, or 
2. Cannot operate a vehicle, or 
3. Cannot afford to drive, and 
4. Cannot use public transportation, or 
5. Public transportation is not accessible or available to them. 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 106



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 4 of 20 

6. Eligibility Determination 
 

a. Qualified persons eligible to receive volunteer services are defined in accordance with Older 
Americans Act of 1965, as amended (OAA), and the Washington State Senior Citizens Services 
Act (SCSA), which are persons over the age of 60 who, because of financial or physical 
incapacity, have no appropriate means of transportation available to them; and as outlined in 
the Target Population Criteria according to the program standards of the Aging and Long Term 
Support Administration Policy and Procedures Manual for Area Agency on Aging Operations. In 
addition, persons who receive volunteer services must be a resident of Mason County.  
Eligibility is determined through use of the Participant Information Form (see Appendix A). 

 
b. Requests for services received by persons less than 60 years of age are not eligible under the 

Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging Contract.  When such inquiries are received, MTA 
will provide services on a first come, first served basis, (and if funding is still available) if the 
person: 

 
1. Does not own a vehicle, or 
2. Cannot operate a vehicle, and 
3. Cannot use public transportation, or 
4. Public transportation is not accessible or available to them. 

 
7. Service Prioritization 
 

a. To best serve the community with limited funding, and operate within the allotted annual 
budget of the Volunteer Driver Program, MTA will provide volunteer driver services to 
individuals primarily for medical trips, to out-of-county destinations and on an, as needed, 
assessed priority basis.   
 

1. Trips provided will be for the purpose of medical care.  Essential errands may be provided 
in conjunction with a medical trip only if it does not require going more than five miles 
from the pick-up point, destination point, or roads traveled between the two points.   
 

2. Trip destinations must be outside of Mason County, unless the person is seeking life-
sustaining medical treatment in Mason County and public transportation is not accessible 
or available to them.  Life sustaining is defined as treatments which discontinuation would 
result in death, such as: dialysis, chemo/radiation therapy, surgery, ventilators, antibiotics 
or other medical procedures.  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 107



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 5 of 20 

 
3. Priority status will be defined in accordance with the OAA and SCSA, which states that 

priority will be given vulnerable, low-income, minority and/or limited English speaking 
elderly, as well as those meeting target population criteria as outlined in program 
standards of the Aging and Long Term Support Administration Policy and Procedures 
Manual for Area Agency on Aging Operations.  Priority is assessed using a Participant 
Information Form and VDP Priority Determination Form (see Appendix A and B). 

 
4. Service priority will be given, as needed, to persons who have been assessed to have a 

priority status.  Meaning, every effort will be made to use the funding allotted within each 
quarter in a manner to sustain the same level of service through the entirety of the 
quarter for persons with a priority status.  Therefore, persons with priority status will have 
precedence for services provided through the Volunteer Driver Program. 
 

5. Trips will only be allowed to be scheduled up to two weeks in advance from the date the 
person makes a request. 

 
8. Service Definition 
 

a. Volunteer drivers perform their functions on behalf of or under the direction of the agency 
seeking their services.  While the volunteer's vehicle is in use on agency directed business, the 
vehicle is considered a mobile work site and the volunteer an agent of the agency.  The scope of 
the volunteer driver's relationship with the agency should be limited to the purposes of 
transporting and escorting (as needed) clients to and from medical services. Volunteer drivers 
in this program drive their own cars and receive reimbursement for expenses incurred, as 
follows: 

 
1. Tolls and parking will be reimbursed for the actual values per proof of receipts provided.   
2. Drivers should attempt to control program costs by scheduling their meals around trips 

and furnishing their own snack lunches.  However, meals are a reimbursable cost if 
unforeseen delays occur and the trip exceeds four hours.  Volunteers will be reimbursed 
according to GSA current per diem rates. Rates can be found at 
https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates/per-diem-rates-
lookup/?action=perdiems_report&state=WA&fiscal_year=2021&zip=&city=i. 

3. Mileage is variable with the cost of fuel.  MTA will set the mileage reimbursement rate 
and so inform the drivers prior to any commitment of the trip.  The mileage allowance 
shall not exceed the IRS reimbursable level. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 108



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 6 of 20 

MTA will not reimburse drivers for fines resulting from illegal operation of the vehicle, i.e., 
traffic or parking violations. 

4. Meal Reimbursement Policy is as follows: MTA will only accept: 
Meals will only be reimbursed when volunteering for at least a four (4) hour time period.  
Also, please note that: 

i. Meals are reimbursed only for the volunteer. 
ii. Meal reimbursements are not authorized for spouses, significant others or clients. 

iii. MTA does not reimburse for tobacco or alcohol products. 
 

5. Incidental Expenses Policy is as follows: In addition to meals, MTA will reimburse for 
incidental travel expenses related to the non-automobile costs the volunteer incurs.  
Examples are: 

a. Parking 
b. Highway and/or bridge tolls 
c. Ferry Tolls 
d. MTA will reimburse for motel/hotel expenses, pre-authorized, as a result of 

inclement weather conditions or emergency circumstances. 
 

In the case of any of the approved incidental expenses listed above, the expenses must be 
documented by original receipts that correspond to the time span of the authorized trip. 

 
        Automobile expenses that will not be reimbursed include:  

a. Traffic fines 
b. Parking fines 
c. Towing charges 
d. Gasoline, etc. 

 
9.  Minimum Requirements for the Volunteer Driver Program 

 
a. Insurance Coverage - Each person volunteering his/her services and his/her vehicles in the 

Volunteer Driver Program shall meet the State requirements as to motor vehicle policy or bond, 
as the volunteer's personal insurance is the primary liability protection.  The following minimum 
coverage is recommended by the State of Washington in the Revised Code of Washington (RCW 
46.29.090): 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 109



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 7 of 20 

1. $25,000 bodily injury, each person 
2. $50,000 bodily injury, each accident 
3. $10,000 property damage 

 
Volunteers will provide proof of coverage that will be satisfactory to the transportation 
provider.  MTA will maintain excess automobile insurance which supplements auto insurance 
coverage for each volunteer driving his/her own vehicle. 

 
b. Volunteer Driver Selection - Transportation providers offering a volunteer transportation 

component should assure that the volunteer drivers are reliable and able to drive safely.  If at 
any time MTA deems that a volunteer driver is not performing his/her duties in a safe and 
reliable manner, at the sole discretion of MTA no further volunteer services will be assigned, 
including those that have been ongoing, pending determination by the  volunteer coordinator.  
Selection of volunteer drivers will be based upon the following criteria: 

1. Prospective volunteer should have an appropriate and valid Washington State driver's 
license. 

2. Assurance that the prospective volunteer has a safe driving record; at a minimum the 
volunteer should have had no at-fault accidents or moving violations in the past three 
years. 

3. Assurance that prospective volunteer has no criminal history record or record of Child or 
Adult abuse.  

4. Assurance that prospective volunteer has State established minimum required insurance 
coverage. 

5. Assurance by prospective volunteer that his/her vehicle is mechanically sound. 
6. Assurance by prospective volunteer that he/she is physically capable of safely driving their 

vehicle and that medications are not being taken that affect driving ability.  Additional 
assurance may be requested in the form of a letter provided by the volunteer’s physician. 

7. Assurance that prospective volunteer's vehicle has seat belts; that the volunteer will use 
seatbelts at all times and will require compliance by their passenger(s) of Washington 
State Laws regarding the wearing of seat belts. 

8. Assurance by the prospective volunteer that he/she will maintain required records, (e.g., 
verification of trip records.) 

9. Assurance that the prospective volunteer will refrain from accepting any donations from 
clients.  Self-addressed envelopes are provided for clients wanting to make voluntary 
donations which protects the client’s right to confidentiality, and which safeguards the 
funds from theft or fraud. 

10. A “Statement of Understanding” is executed and acknowledged with their signature. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 110



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 8 of 20 

11. Assurance that the prospective volunteer will maintain the conditions of his/her selection 
in Section 9; paragraph B, items 1-11, as listed above. 

 
c. Volunteers Driver Orientation - The agency should provide orientation to volunteers prior to 

their providing service (see Appendix C, Exhibits A-F).  
 
Orientation will include: 

1. Information about the agency 
2. The purpose of the Volunteer Transportation Program 
3. The role volunteers play in the Transit System 
4. Review of the program policy and procedures 
5. An explanation of the job description, reporting and evaluation process 

 
d. Volunteers rights and responsibilities - The agency should provide information volunteers with 

information during orientation regarding theirs rights and responsibilities. 
 
Rights and Responsibilities of Volunteers include:  

1. To maintain their vehicle in safe operating condition 
2. To assure the use of seatbelts by passengers and volunteer 
3. To maintain client confidentiality 
4. To maintain the client's right to self-determination 
5. To exercise due care in operating the motor vehicle 
6. To notify the agency in the event of an accident 
7. To appropriately use Disabled Parking Permit 
8. Reimbursement for allowable expenses incurred 
9. Reporting requirements 
10. Evaluation 
11. Agency contact and supervision 

 
e. Volunteers Driver Training – Volunteers should be provided with the appropriate training to 

conduct services in a safe manner. Mandatory training to be completed within sixty (60) days 
following the initial driving assignment: 

1. Passenger Assistance & Sensitivity Training (ADAPT or PASS) 
2. Defensive Driving Course 

 
Special training opportunities are strongly encouraged for: 

1. CPR/First Aid 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 111



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 9 of 20 

  
The agency will encourage the program to coordinate training with other community programs 
in order to maximize the volunteer's knowledge about the integration with the area service 
delivery system.  Cost of such training will be reimbursed by MTA. 
 

f. Volunteer Driver Review - On an annual basis, each volunteer driver will be reviewed in 
conference to: 

1. Update application information with regard to name, address and emergency contact 
2. Driver’s license information 
3. At-fault accidents and traffic violations monitored through Envision.  
4. Vehicle information and vehicle inspection 
5. Periodic Status Check on Volunteer  
6. Confidentiality Agreement Review performance by conducting a ride-a-long driver 

evaluation and review of job responsibilities 
 

If at any time the volunteer driver is found to have not maintained the conditions of his/her 
selection as defined in Section 9; paragraph B, items 1-11, as well as pass their annual review as 
defined in Section 9; paragraph F, items 1-7, then the driver will be suspended from provided 
services until the item(s) are in compliance with this policy. If a volunteer driver is out do to 
their own medical condition, then they will be asked to provide a release from their doctor 
okaying them to drive before returning to the program. 

 
Any accident or reportable incident involving a volunteer performing agency-sponsored activity 
should be reported and investigated immediately by the agency.  A report of the accident 
should be filed in the volunteer's personnel file. 

  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 112



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 10 of 20 

APPENDIX A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 113



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 11 of 20 

APPENDIX B   
 

 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 114



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 12 of 20 

 
APPENDIX C              
 
EXHIBIT A - DRIVER CONDUCT 
 

1. All volunteer drivers will act in a professional manner at all times. 
2. Reports of staff or volunteer driver misconduct will be cause for immediate suspension from 

client service.  Confirmation of misconduct shall be cause for removal of the volunteer driver 
involved from serving clients.  Mason Transit Authority (MTA) may be required to report all 
incidents to the state or federal funding agencies. 

3. If the state funding agency and/or MTA receives complaints regarding any volunteer driver 
transporting riders, and/or it is determined that the volunteer driver is not performing  the 
service in a safe, reliable or responsible manner and corrective action has not resulted in 
improved performance, MTA will remove the volunteer driver from service to riders. 

4. If any volunteer is suspended from service due to complaints or a determination that the 
person is not performing the service in a safe, reliable and responsible manner, they will not 
return to service until MTA has developed a plan of improvement. 

5. Volunteers shall perform the following minimum levels of service; A volunteer driver shall:  
 

a. Wear, or have visible, easy to read proper organizational identification; 
b. As appropriate to the needs of the rider, exit the vehicle to open and close doors when 

passengers enter or exit the vehicle and provide assistance as necessary to or from the 
main door of the place of destination; 

c. Properly identify and announce their presence at the entrance of the   building at the 
specified pick-up location if a curbside pick-up is not apparent, or with attending facility 
staff; 

d. Assist the passengers in the process of being seated, including the fastening of the seat 
belt, when necessitated by the rider’s condition; 

e. Confirm, prior to allowing any vehicle to proceed, that all passengers are properly secured 
in their seat belts; 

f. Provide an appropriate level of assistance to passengers, when requested, or when 
necessitated by a passenger’s condition; 

g. Provide support and direction to passengers.  Such assistance shall also apply to the 
movement of wheelchairs and mobility-limited persons as they enter or exit a facility or 
vehicle as applicable.  Such assistance shall also include stowage by the driver of mobility 
aids and folding wheelchairs; 

h. Be clean and maintain a neat appearance at all times; 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 115



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 13 of 20 

i. Be polite and courteous to riders; riders shall be treated with respect and in a culturally 
appropriate manner when receiving transportation services.  MTA will notify the 
volunteer driver of any known cultural issues significant to providing transportation 
services; and, 

j. Respect passengers’ rights to confidentiality. 
 

6. A volunteer driver shall not: 
 

a. Make sexually explicit comments, or solicit sexual favors, or engage in sexual activity; 
b. Solicit or accept controlled substances, alcohol, or medications from riders; 
c. Solicit or accept money from riders; 
d. Use alcohol, narcotics or controlled substances, or be under the influence, while 

performing as a volunteer driver.  Prescribed medication can be used by a driver as long as 
his/her responsibilities as a volunteer driver can still be performed in a safe manner and 
MTA has written documentation that medication will not impact the ability of the driver; 

e. Eat or consume any beverage while operating the vehicle or while involved in rider 
assistance; 

f. Smoke in the vehicle when riders are present.  This rule also applies to clients and a 
client’s escort; 

g. Wear any type of headphones while performing as a volunteer driver; 
h. Be responsible for passengers’ personal items. 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 116



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 14 of 20 

EXHIBIT B - CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

1. The principal of confidentiality is basic to the maintenance of professional ethics and 
community respect.  All staff and volunteers of MTA have a set of ethical responsibilities by 
which they are bound to the rider, the community and themselves. MTA riders act in good 
faith, expecting their circumstances and personal matters to remain confidential and MTA is 
obligated by law and ethics to reciprocate.  Confidentiality of rider information is maintained 
for the protection of the rider and for MTA. 

 
2. Staff members, including volunteers, will use the following procedures.  For the purposes of 

these procedures a “rider” is defined as a person registered as a program participant.  
Registration is accomplished by completion of a Participant Information Form (PIF). 

 
a. All staff members will take responsibility for protecting the confidentiality of all riders and 

sign a confidentiality form to be maintained in their personnel file.  New staff members 
will receive instruction in these confidentiality procedures. 

b. All written and unwritten information concerning riders of MTA are considered as 
confidential. 

c. All written information regarding the riders of MTA will be maintained in files.  Only those 
staff members with a “need to know” will have access to these files.  No staff member 
may remove rider files from the office without authorization from the staff member’s 
supervisor. 

d. When it is necessary for a member of the staff to communicate information about a rider 
to another person or agency, an Authorization to Obtain/Release Information Form will be 
signed by the rider or their legal representative.  The signed release will be kept in the 
rider’s permanent record.  If the rider is unable to give written consent, then the staff 
member releasing the information will document the circumstances. 

e. When rider-related materials, i.e., lists, log and files are used outside the office, staff 
members are responsible and must take appropriate steps to safeguard the materials. 

f. In emergency situations, when it is not possible to have a form signed, a verbal release 
may be given by the rider or their legal representative.  The staff member who receives 
the verbal release will make a note in the rider’s file and will obtain the written release as 
soon as possible. 

g. A signed release will not be needed when, in general, personal information shall not be 
used or disclosed by any person or organization without the informed consent of the 
individual who is the subject or the information. 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 117



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 15 of 20 

h. When MTA staff is working with a rider and finds it necessary to obtain written 
information from another person or agency, it will be necessary to obtain a signed release 
from the rider or representative.  This release will indicate that the rider or representative 
has given permission for release of information to MTA. 

i. When MTA staff either receives requested written information or releases written 
information about a rider to another person or agency, a written or verbal follow-up will 
be given to the rider.  This follow-up will inform the rider as to what information was 
released or obtained and what progress has been made in helping with his/her individual 
situation.  A record of the follow-up will be kept in the rider’s file. 

j. When MTA staff receives unsolicited information from the rider, the staff member may 
legally need to share that information, e.g., suspected abuse.  The staff member may also 
ask the rider for permission to make an appropriate referral, i.e., Gatekeeper function.  

k. When MTA staff receives unsolicited information about a rider from family members, 
Gatekeepers, etc., the staff member may share the information with the rider.  
Professional judgment will determine what to share. 

l. The fact that a situation has been made public through any of the new media does not 
alter the fact that this person still has confidentiality privileges with MTA.  For example, if 
a rider has been having difficulties with a given problem and is arrested, MTA 
confidentially procedures will be maintained. 

  
3. The major exception to this policy is that the information may be used for purposes directly 

connected with the administration of the program that has collected the information.  Such 
purposes include, but are not necessarily limited to; determining eligibility, providing the 
services and participating in audits of the program.  An example of using personal information 
in the course of providing a service would be staff member giving the name and other 
necessary information about an individual desiring a specific service to an organization than can 
provide that service. 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 118



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 16 of 20 

EXHIBIT C - DONATIONS 
 

1. Persons who receive services funded by Title III of the Older Americans Act must be given a free 
and voluntary opportunity to contribute to the cost of services provided.  The same opportunity 
must be extended to persons who receive SCSA-funded services that are not subject to a means 
test. Other persons in need of special transportation regardless of funding source should be 
afforded similar opportunities, as the persons in the categories above. The service provider 
must protect each person’s privacy with respect to his or her contribution, establish procedures 
to safeguard and account for all contributions made by users of the service and use all such 
contributions to expand the service that received the contribution.  
 

2. Envelopes are provided by Volunteer Drivers for the purpose of ensuring confidentiality.  
 

3.  MTA will not differentiate among individuals based on their ability, or inability to make a 
donation.  No otherwise eligible person may be denied service because he/she will not or 
cannot contribute to the cost of service. 

 
4. Volunteer drivers are not allowed to receive donations.  In order to assure that riders are 

afforded the opportunities described above, they may be mailed a detailed accounting of 
volunteer trips provided, length of the trip, and a suggested donation rate.  Those factors may 
be totaled in the form of an aggregate suggested donation.  A copy of the aggregate accounting 
can be sent to persons who have agreed to pay for the transportation services.  Included are 
family members, personal representatives, friends, and agencies that have agreed to pay at the 
suggested donation rate. 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 119



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 17 of 20 

EXHIBIT D - ABUSE, NEGLECT, ABANDONMENT & EXPLOITATION 
 

1. Volunteers will be trained to report concerns immediately to the office of the Department of 
Social & Health Services that is responsible for Adult Protective Services and provided with a 
report form upon orientation. The staff member, including volunteers, shall also report 
concerns to his/her supervisor and/or Volunteer Driver Coordinator to receive further 
instructions as needed.  People in certain professions are mandated to report suspected abuse, 
neglect, exploitation or abandonment of persons sixty (60) years of age or older who have a 
functional, mental, or physical inability to care for or protect themselves.  Persons who are 
required to report must call Adult Protective Services immediately and follow-up with a written 
report within ten (10) days.  Those mandated to report include:   

 
a. Police officers 
b. Social workers 
c. Employees/Volunteers of welfare, mental health, or health agencies, or congregate care 

long-term care facilities 
d. Licensed health care providers 
e. Employees of the Department of Social & Health Services 
f. Employees of social service agencies 

 
2. Abuse and neglect of older persons includes several categories of acts and/or omissions 

generally referred to as abuse, neglect, exploitation and abandonment.  Signs of potential 
abuse or neglect include an elderly person: 

 
a. with bruises, welts or burns or evidence of physical restraints; 
b. who appears over- or under-medicated; 
c. with inadequate food or water, or with unclean clothes or bedding; 
d. whose caregiver abuses alcohol or in emotionally unstable; 
e. who previously has had excellent credit or resources but now seems unable to meet 

expenses; 
f. whose caregiver is under severe stress such as illness, unemployment of family problems’ 
g. living in a family with a history of violence such as child or spouse abuse; and 
h. who is not permitted visitors or direct, private communication with others. 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 120



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 18 of 20 

3. Definitions 
 

a. Abuse:  An act of physical or mental mistreatment or injury that harms or threatens a 
person through action or inaction by another individual.  Abuse may be physical, sexual, 
verbal or emotional.  “Medical” abuse refers to over-medication or withholding of 
medications or other needed assistance in order to control the older person. Signs of 
abuse: 

i. Suspicious bruising or other injuries to arms, face or head 
ii. Marks from tying or other restraints 

iii. Purposeful isolation 
iv. Unwarranted sedation 
v. Withholding of food, water or medication (without consent) 

vi. Unexplained depression or anxiety 
 

b. Neglect:  A pattern of conduct resulting in deprivation of care necessary to maintain 
minimum physical and mental health.  Neglect occurs when a caregiver does not provide 
enough care and support to meet the person’s individual needs for physical emotional 
well-being.  (The situation may be “self-neglect” when the needs of an older person are 
not being met, but here is not an identified caregiver.) Signs of neglect: 

i. Inadequate food or water 
ii. Un-cleanliness 

iii. Serious bedsores 
iv. Social isolation 
v. Lack of proper medical or dental care or equipment 

vi. Unsanitary conditions 
vii. Unpaid bills 

viii. Untreated mental illness 
 

c. Exploitation:  Illegal or improper use of a vulnerable adult or that adult’s resources for 
another person’s profit or advantage.  Exploitation may involve obtaining access to and 
misusing an older person’s income, financial resources or real property, obtaining money 
fraudulently, charging for services not provided, misuse of a Power of Attorney, and 
emotional pressure to change a will to sign over property. Signs of exploitation: 

i. Sudden change in an older person’s spending habits 
ii. Unexplained loss of resources or valuables 

iii. Overdrawn accounts 
iv. Loss checks or passbooks 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 121



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 19 of 20 

v. Unusual or suspicious withdrawals from bank 
vi. An unfit person moving in 

vii. Sudden quit-claim deeds of property 
viii. Suspicious or unauthorized use of an older person’s credit card 

 
d. Abandonment:  Leaving a vulnerable adult without the means to obtain food, clothing, 

shelter or health care.  This form of abuse involves a recognized caregiver who has been 
giving regular and substantial care to an older person, and willfully discontinues the care 
without assuring adequate replacement or giving appropriate notice to responsible 
parties. Signs of abandonment: 

i. Sudden departure of caregiver 
ii. No movement in or around an older person’s home 

iii. No answer to telephone 
iv. Uncollected mail or newspapers piling up 
v. Older person suddenly discontinuing routine social contacts 

 
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 122



 
 

Title: Volunteer Driver Program 
Number: 1000 
Effective: December 1, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2013-26 
Prepared by: Haley Dorian, Program Coordinator  
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-40 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 20 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – REPORTING  
 

1. Volunteers are required to report services provided, to include date trip provided, person 
served, pick-up and destination address, mileage, trips and hours.  Reports are required to be 
accurate and submitted on the first day of each month for the previous month’s service 
provision. 

 

            
 
 
 
 
 

                                

Date Passenger & Address Odometer Start Odometer Stop Total Miles Destination 1-Way Trips Trip Purpose Hours

                     VOLUNTEER DRIVER TRAVEL EXPENSE CLAIM FORM

JANE DOE GROUP HEALTH

123 DOLLY LANE 26354 26420 66 700 LILLY ROAD 2 A-A 3

SHELTON, WA 98584 LEAVE HOME RETURN HOME OLYMPIA, WA 98584

3/26/2010

3/29/2010

JOHN SMITH W.W. ONCOLOGY

123 DEER RD 26615 26764 149 4525 3RD AVE OLYMPIA, WA 3 A-C-A 5

BELFAIR, WA 98528 FRED MEYER IN SHELTON

3/29/2010

3/20/2010

SALLY AND JOE SMITH VISTA CARE ONCOLOGY

321 MICKEY MOUSE RD 26764 26909 145 141 LILLY RD OLYMPIA, WA 6 AA-CC-AA 5

BELFAIR, WA 98528 QFC IN BELFAIR

3/20/2010

3/20/2010

JANE DOE DOCTORS CLINIC

123 DOLLY LANE 26955 2526 WHEATON WAY

SHELTON, WA 98584 BREMERTON, WA

3/20/2010

3/20/2010

SALLY SMITH DOCTORS CLINIC

321 MICKEY MOUSE RD 27125 170 2526 WHEATON WAY 4 AA-AA 3

BELFAIR, WA 98528 BREMERTON, WA

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the information provided is true and correct; Trip Purpose Legend Office Use Only
and that no part of this claim has been/will be paid by any other agency or individual. Enter Corresponding Letter for Each Trip Purpose Total Miles

in Trip Purpose Column Mileage Rate  x          
Date __________ Mileage Reimbursement $

A - Medical Other reimbursed expenses +
B - Adult Daycare +
C - Essential Errands

City                                                                        State                  Zip D - Social Services Total Reimbursement       = $
E - Nutrition
F - Employment

Mail or deliver to: G - Recreation Total  1-Way Trips
Mason Transit Authority H - Education Total Volunteer Hours
790 E John's Prairie Rd
PO Box 1880 # of trip purposes must equate # of 1-way trips
Shelton WA  98584
(360) 426-9434 or  (800) 281-9434 Approval Signature

Signature _SIGNATURE REQUIRED TO PROCESS CLAIM FORM!_____

Address  _____________________________________________________________________

 

3/20/2010

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 123



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 6 – Actionable 
Subject:  Contract with Public Relations Firm      
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
In seeking new ways to reach the public, it seemed apparent assistance in the area of 
Public Relations was needed with tasks such as campaigns on new service and restoring 
ridership along with creating a stronger social media presence and press releases to 
help the public become more aware of MTA services. 
 
An Informal Solicitation for Proposals for a public relations firm was published 
September 17, 2020. The deadline for proposals was October 9, 2020 and four 
proposals were received. The Executive Team reviewed the proposals and used a 
matrix to score the proposals based on quality of response, project understanding, 
availability of team, experience and price with preference given to DBE/WOB or other 
minority owned business. JayRay was chosen as scoring the highest in each of the 
criteria.  
 
The proposal along with Terms and Conditions are attached. 
 
Legal Counsel has reviewed the contract. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve General Manager to sign Terms and Conditions agreement with 
JayRay. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
  
$54,112.50 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-41 
authorizing the General Manager to sign and execute the Terms and Conditions in the 
amount of $54,112.50 between JayRay and Mason Transit Authority.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 124



 
 
 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

Confidentiality 
The agency will keep confidential information that has not been made public and is designated as 
confidential by the client. 

 

Project Budgets 
The client and agency will agree on a budget for each project. Budgets will be based on a defined 
level of effort and expense. Acceptance of the budget by the client confirms that JayRay has 
been contracted by the client for the project as described. 

 

Project Changes 
Changes in project requirements, specifications or schedule may require a change in budget. 
JayRay will provide to the client a budget that reflects the changed level of effort and expense.   

 

Project Approvals 
JayRay will provide the client with proofs to assure accuracy of materials created on its behalf. 
JayRay will exercise reasonable care to avoid errors. The client retains final responsibility for the 
decision to print, produce or disseminate materials.   

 

Postponement or Cancellation 
If the project is cancelled or postponed prior to completion, the client agrees to pay JayRay for 
the full project budget, including commissions or markup. 

 

Ownership 
The client owns all original artwork created by JayRay on its behalf, upon payment in full of the 
project invoice. JayRay’s subcontractors, vendors and suppliers (such as photographers, stock 
photo houses and font libraries) retain ownership and possession of all original work they have 
created unless otherwise negotiated. Materials owned by the client and archived by JayRay may 
be destroyed after three years. JayRay retains the right to use work created for the client for its 
own self-promotion purposes. JayRay retains ownership of all concepts not selected for 
production by the client. 

 

Markups and Commissions 
The agency will add a 20 percent markup to all out-of-pocket costs such as printing, 
photography, web hosting, web plug-ins, broadcast production and research, incurred on behalf 
of the client. The agency will retain all commissions granted to recognized agencies and will 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 125



2 
 

mark up non-commissionable media billed through the agency equivalent to the standard 15 
percent agency commission.   

 

Miscellaneous Charges 
Expenses such as photocopying, facsimile, postage, delivery, telephone and travel will not be 
marked up. They will be billed as estimated or billed at cost. 
 

Terms 
JayRay will invoice the client monthly electronically via email for work done in the previous 
calendar month, unless other arrangements are mutually agreed upon. The client agrees to pay 
agency invoices within 30 days of receipt unless otherwise agreed. All work will be discontinued 
and media schedules cancelled when payment is 45 days in arrears. 

 

Jurisdiction 
This agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Washington, and the client consents to 
the jurisdiction of the courts of Pierce County for any legal action related to this agreement. 
The client also agrees to pay all reasonable collection expenses, attorney fees, and court costs 
arising out of such disputes, whether or not a lawsuit is filed or served.  

 

Client/Agency Agreement 
Effective November 17, 2020 JayRay Ads & PR, Inc., is authorized by Mason Transit 
Authority to act as an advertising/public relations agent on our behalf. This agreement 
authorizes JayRay Ads & PR to develop and purchase printed materials, photography, media 
advertising, and other goods and services as necessary to carry out authorized and approved 
advertising/public relations programs on our behalf.  When making approved purchases on our 
behalf, JayRay is acting only as our agent, and liability for payment for these goods and/or 
services remains ours. The agency will pay all vendors and media within 14 days of receipt of 
payment from the client.  

 

For Mason Transit Authority 

 

 

Signed        Date 

 

Send invoices to 

Name:_________________________ 

 

Email address: ___________________ 

 

Phone number: __________________ 
 

Revised 6/18/19 
November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 126



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 127



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 128



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 129



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 130



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 131



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 132



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 133



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 134



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 135



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 136



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 137



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 138



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 139



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 140



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 141



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 142



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 143



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 144



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 145



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 146



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 147



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 148



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 149



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 150



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 151



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 152



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 153



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 154



November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 155



Resolution No. 2020-41 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-41 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN THE 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTRACT WITH JAYRAY FOR PUBLIC 
RELATIONS SERVICES. 

 
 WHEREAS, Mason Transit Authority desires to seek assistance in the area of public 
relations with tasks such as campaigns on new service and restoring ridership, along with 
creating a stronger social media presence, as well as press releases to help the public 
become more aware of MTA services;  

 WHEREAS, MTA received four proposals on an informal solicitation for proposals for a 
public relations firm; and 

 WHEREAS, MTA’s Executive Team used a matrix to score the proposals based on 
quality of response, project understanding, availability of team, experience and price with 
preference given to DBE/WOB or other minority owned business, with JayRay chosen scoring 
highest in each of the criteria;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the General Manager is authorized to sign the Term and Conditions agreement in 
the amount of $54,112.50 between JayRay and Mason Transit Authority. 
 

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2020. 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 156



Resolution No. 2020-41 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 157



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Permits have been completed for the MTA Park and Ride Development 
Program. 
 
Pear Orchard Construction: Scarsella is progressing construction. The electrical 
contractor has been working on site and Scarsella is in the process of staking curb and 
gutter. A pre-con with WSDOT is scheduled for the week of 11/15 to discuss WSDOT 
right of way work. 
 
Program Construction: Rognlin’s is preparing submittals for the overall project and 
evaluating how to order materials and stay in line with the available funding. Rognlin’s 
will begin to order critical elements of the Belfair and Shelton park and ride to address 
long lead times for certain items. Rognlin’s is currently planning on having the park and 
ride completed by end of June 2021. 
 
Other progress: Scarsella/Parsons is currently progressing construction of their portion 
of the Shelton-Matlock Road park and ride. There were some issues between WSDOT 
and Scarsella/Parsons with regard to following process and the contract. 
Scarsella/Parsons will revise the stormwater construction to match the plan documents. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 158



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 159



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board November 17, 2020 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 160



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
1/

17
/2

02
0 

  
 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board November 17, 2020 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
Park & Ride Development: 

• Pear Orchard and Shelton-Matlock are under construction. 
• Phone meetings with Project Manager. 
• Met with business owner next to the Shelton-Matlock Park & Ride to discuss fencing. 
• Met virtually with the WSDOT Project Management team. 
• Please see Park & Ride informational page for more details. 

T-CC Parking Lot: 
• We are still waiting for the No Further Action opinion. Received feedback from Ecology and Landau 

Associates is responding to provide the information needed. 
EDC:   

• Assisted the Executive Director with EDC concerns.  
WSTIP:  

• Attended the Monthly Executive Committee meeting. 
• Planning details of January Board Retreat. 
• Participated in Coverage Review Committee meeting. 
• Participated in the Risk and Opportunities Committee meeting. 

WSTA/SMTA:  
• Participated in bi-weekly SMTA call with other GMs. 
• Participated in WSTA Legislative Affairs committee (2x). 
• Provided input into developing a Transit Leadership Program. 

Webinars:  
       Attended the following webinars: 

• Transit Tuesday: Celebrating ADA at 30th – What’s Next? 
• DOT, FTA and HUD on COVID-19 Recovery. 

PRTPO: 
• Participated in PRTPO Technical Advisory Committee meeting. 

External Activities: 
• Interview with Journal on MTA Budget. 
• Virtual meeting with Intercity Transit GM to catch up on their service plan, etc. 
• Participated in the PRTPO 35th District Legislative Forum. 

Internal Activities: 
• Submitted Consolidated Grant Application. 
• Employee Engagement Committee meeting.  
• Reviewed proposals from PR firms. Selected JayRay. Did a debrief with one of the firms not selected.  
• Kick-off meeting with JayRay and provide Terms and Conditions for legal review. 
• Met with LeeAnn and Tracy to go over duties and move contract oversight to Tracy. 
• Met with team to discuss better ways to communicate between drivers-dispatch-maintenance to 

improve process when a driver is having a maintenance issue while on the road. 
• Worked on EEO Policy; reviewed and edited four other policies in preparation for committee meeting 

and board approval. 
• Policy Committee meeting. 
• SAO Audit Exit Conference. 
• Various meetings regarding projects and move to T-CC. 
• 2021 Planning day with Managers 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 161



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
11

/1
7/

20
20

  

Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 
• Administration move to the T-CC is delayed until end of December or early January. The Gravity 

Program is moving upstairs where FESS was located. Admin will move into the space Gravity currently 
occupies across from the Board Room. The space will require building two offices, cubicles, and a new 
door before Admin moves. In the meantime, Admin is still at Johns Prairie in the Ops area.  

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
 
HR Support   

• Participated in Employee Engagement Committee meetings. 
• Attended IPMA-HR two-day virtual conference. 
• Reviewed several HR related policies. 
• Met virtually with Danette and a representative from the new YMCA in support of their membership 

drive. 
• Researched EEO.  

Recruiting 
• No open positions at this time. 

Administrative Functions 
• Submitted Q3 operating and capital grant reports to WSDOT. 
• Held first of two public hearings for the 2021 budget. 
• Wrap up of the 2019 SAO Audit. 
• SAO Exit Conference scheduled for November 13, 2020. 
• Reviewed fixed assets and budget assumptions with Danette. 
• Attended WSTIP’s virtual Risk and Opportunity Committee meeting. 
• Prepared Q3 DOR tax returns. 
• Continued working on tenant leases before handing off oversight to Tracy. 
• Admin office has moved to temporary space in Building 2 at JP while we await our move to the TCC. 
• Participate in leadership planning day. 

 
MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 
 
Outreach and meetings: 

• Participated in the Shelton High School Automotive Advisory Committee meeting, 
• Schedule meeting with WSTA to discuss Spring Maintenance meeting and Forum.  

T-CC Facility: 
Gym:  

• Continuing to work with Jordanne K. at the City of Shelton on pickle ball program. 
• Hosted a Telecare conference in the gym that was attended by 10 people using approved social 

distancing procedures. 
Conference Room: No activity due to COVID-19 virus. 
Kitchen:  

• Held meeting with potential new kitchen use client 
 

T-CC Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance 
Projects/Purchases 

• Steve is coordinating with Tracy, LeeAnn, and Christina on T-CC leases, use agreements and 
accounting requirements. 

• On-going deep cleaning for COVID-19. 
• Prepping for the JP Admin move to T-CC.  
• Obtaining office construction estimates for the T-CC. 
• Arranged for purchase of new scissor lift. 
 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 162



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
1/

17
/2

02
0 

  
Johns Prairie and Belfair Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance: 

• Completed pre-construction meeting with Gillig for two 35-foot coaches utilizing the 5339 grant. 
• Obtaining pricing for the procurement for one mini cutaway. 
• On-going maintenance of the temporary Belfair office. 
• On-going deep cleaning for COVID-19 
• The six surplus buses are at Ehli’s being prepped for auction 
• Assisted with the relocation of FESS from the T-CC to the JP facility. 

 
OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 
 

• Assistance:  Operations Supervisors conducted 13 driver/passenger assistance calls in October. 
• COVID-19:  Chris W. ordered and installed Public Service Announcements for our coaches and DAR 

vehicles.  Maintenance installed automatic hand sanitizers in each of the coaches, this will help us to 
reduce purchasing the small plastic bottles to handout to customers to use. 

• Inclement Weather:  The 2020-2021 Inclement Weather Plan was completed and distributed to all 
staff.   

• Meals on Wheels:  We delivered 1,204 meals and 28 commodity boxes to Mason County residents in 
October. 

• Outreach presentations:  All outreach presentations have stopped during the COVID-19 outbreak. 
• Retirements:  Juan Perez-Moron is scheduled to retire on November 20. He has driven for MTA for over 

18 years!!  A driver line shake-up was conducted on November 3rd to fill Juan’s shift.   
• Ridership:  We had 15,637 total riders in all modes of transportation in October 2020. This is up 326 

riders from September 2020!! 
• Training:  We took part in the Great Washington Shake-out earthquake drill on October 15 and trained 

staff on “Duck, Cover, Hold”.  Lisa D. is currently training two new back-up worker/drivers for their CDL 
license.  Matt provided refresher training for two drivers. 

• Vanpool: Usage rate for October 2020 was 50%; 5 of 10 vans were in use. 
• Worker/Drivers:  James and Michael are scheduled to take their CDL driving test on November 22.  

Good Luck!!     
  

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 163



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
11

/1
7/

20
20

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 164



2020 Work Items
Completed as 

of 
11/13/2020

1st Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required √

2nd Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required √

3rd Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required √

4th Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required

Complete CAD/AVL/GPS installation √

Change from flag stop to fixed stop in urban area of Shelton

Curbs or bollards at Johns Prairie

Purchase rain jackets √

Manager or supervisor on-duty during service - Move Ops office √

Ensure L & I safety compliance through training

Review WSTIP Best Practices for Safety

Define Safety Committee's purpose and direction

Review DAR services and hours for efficiency and availability √

Expand Zipper route time to 8:00am-5:00pm √

Seek Pilot opportunities and funding

Continue review of Comp Service Review √

Conduct outreach for all service changes

Progress

First Quarter Training included: 10 CPR/AED/FA Trainings; all drivers did 8 hours of refresher training on ADA 
callouts, Mindful Driving, G.O.A.L., Safety Incentives and PASS(wheelchair) Training.  One Vol. Driver trained 
and one new Worker/Driver; 57 of Operations staff participated in a 90 minute presentaton by the National 
Alliance of Mental Illness; retrained one driver on a coach; and training on the new Hybrid bus with 
Worker/Drivers. 

For the most part UniteGPS and Ecolane are now working. Still tweaking minor things put overall the project 
has been completed.

Objective 1: Safe and Secure

Bus on the Lookout; CPR/AED/FA; one volunteer driver trained; two back-up worker/drivers were route 
trained; Ecolane; Reasonable Suspicion; PASS; COVID-19 PPE; one driver refresher; new vehicle training.

All caught up in CPR/AED/FA and PASS training; 7 drivers trained in 40' coaches; 1 driver trained in new 
cutaway; tablet training for all drivers; 1 vanpool driver trained; 2 drivers currently being trained as back up 
worker/drivers.

Rainjackets have been ordered; grant request submitted to WSTIP

Operations office at T-CC is complete. Operations Supervisors are now available while service is operating.

Working on pilot route for Lakeland Village and ATS (Agate, Timberlake and Shorecrest). Will be adding new 
route once Shelton-Matlock Park & Ride is open.
We have completed looking at recommendations from the Comp. Service Review. However, we will 
continue to use this document as a reference.

We did outreach on our current service changes - public meetings, direct communication with riders and a 
radio spot. Outreach has/is being conducted during the COVID-19 crisis through press releases and rider 
alerts; keeping website up-to-date with current information and route changes.

Objective 2: Effective Transportation Services

Once regular service hours resume, we will continue to track DAR and complete a survey on the whether the 
changes we made in Feb are providing efficiency and availability. Until then, the project is considered 
completed as our Feb. 3, 2020 shake up changes showed an 8% increase in DAR ridership.

Zipper route time has been expanded.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020 November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 165



Improve passenger amenities 

Plan for 2021 service adjustments due to impact of funding √

Benchmark route performance and monitor low-performing routes

Procurement training for Public Works projects √

Prepare for I-976 impacts √

Create needed financial policies or manual

Ensure compliance of grant contracts √

Review 5-year sustainability plan √

Prepare for Paid Family Medical Leave rollout √
Maintain Fair Labor Standard Act compliance through updated 
training

Records Management - Network reorganization

Conduct Community Conversations to solicit input

Participate in community events

Promote City and County partnerships

Participate in outside committees, RTPO and boards

Participate in mentorship programs

Promote Volunteer Driver Program

Park & Ride project (through 2023)

Brand vehicles √

Progression toward inclusion of electric vehicles X

Improve communications through established methods

Incorporate wellness program and encourage participation
Kick off of Wellness Program was done at the All-MTA Meeting with the first wellness challenge. The 
committee has several activities planned.

Objective 5: Workplace Culture

The Employee Engagement Committee is working through a communication plan.

This is currently on hold due to COVID-19.

Delivering meals to seniors during the COVID-19 crisis.

Worked with City on T-CC Parking Lot project that is now complete.

Danette: PRTPO, EDC, WSTIP, WSTA. Kathy: Moving Mason Forward, TIP CAP, Opiate Stakeholders. LeeAnn: 
WSTIP. Marshall: Centralia College Diesel Advisory Committee.

No activities this month.

See Park & Ride informational page for update.

At this time, we are putting further steps on hold.

Completed the information center at the T-CC; working on new scheduling software that has an app for 
scheduling a ride and knowing where the bus is.

Objective 4: Community Partnerships and Responsibility

Currently, promoting the program is on hold as several of the drivers are unavailable

Standard design for branding buses is complete;  some of the new cutaways will have taglines on them 
promoting MTA.

Objective 3: Financial Stewardship

Staff attended training. Policy has been updated. Processes and forms have been created. Finance staff 
trained department heads.

We have prepared as best we can. MTA's financial outlook is healthy through 2021 at least.

Service levels will be returning to 75% of what we had pre-COVID. We will be using this base 
line as the premise for future service levels should the impact of I-976 becomes a reality. In the 
TDP, we show a reduction in service in 2021-2022.

LeeAnn has reviewed grant agreements and has thoroughly gone through the reimbursement process to 
ensure charges are proper.

The 5-year sustainability plan has been updated. Staff will be seeking input from the Board.

Policy has been created. Employees have been presented with information at the All-MTA Meeting.

The file structure has been planned and the IT Team is in the process of creating a new drive. New drive has 
been created. Next step is to begin using new drive and naming structure.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020 November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 166



Promote skills and job knowledge

Bargain contracts for drivers and Comm Center √

Employee Engagement committee 

Enhance meaningful employee recognition √

Provide more Belfair interaction and oversight √

Prepare a policy review schedule √
This has been improved through having a COVID-19 Coordinator.

Created a schedule for reviewing policies.

GM working with Ops and Finance on expanding knowledge of staff.

Drivers' contract has been ratified. Comm Center is no longer in a bargaining unit.

Continued meetings, almost have completed the Communication Plan. Working on alternatives to the All-
Staff.

We have revised the employee recognition policy; have incorporated a safety bonus for drivers; are being 
mindful of showing appreciation. 

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020 November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 167



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 3 –Informational 
Subject:    Operational Statistics 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
The attached ridership data depicts the continued impact of the pandemic on passenger 
utilization of MTA services as it continues to show decreased ridership in 2020 over 
previous year. Ridership has been mostly stable since July, showing a slight increase in 
the number of Out of County and Demand Response passengers in October. 
 
 
 
 
 M

ason T
ransit A

uthority B
oard 

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 168



RIDERSHIP DATA CHARTED

800
1200
1600
2000
2400
2800
3200
3600
4000
4400

Demand Response 2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

350
1850
3350
4850
6350
7850
9350

10850
12350
13850
15350
16850
18350
19850
21350
22850

Out of County Ridership
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

4600
6100
7600
9100

10600
12100
13600
15100
16600
18100
19600

In County Ridership 2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

7500
10500
13500
16500
19500
22500
25500
28500
31500
34500
37500
40500
43500

Total Ridership 2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

1
301
601
901

1201
1501
1801
2101
2401
2701
3001
3301
3601

Express Ridership
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

November 17, 2020 Reg Board Mtg 169


	ADP79E8.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	October 20, 2020
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING PUBLIC HEARING AND MEETING

	ADP4FE8.tmp
	Standard Terms and Conditions
	Confidentiality The agency will keep confidential information that has not been made public and is designated as confidential by the client.
	Project Budgets The client and agency will agree on a budget for each project. Budgets will be based on a defined level of effort and expense. Acceptance of the budget by the client confirms that JayRay has been contracted by the client for the projec...
	Project Changes Changes in project requirements, specifications or schedule may require a change in budget. JayRay will provide to the client a budget that reflects the changed level of effort and expense.
	Postponement or Cancellation If the project is cancelled or postponed prior to completion, the client agrees to pay JayRay for the full project budget, including commissions or markup.
	Miscellaneous Charges Expenses such as photocopying, facsimile, postage, delivery, telephone and travel will not be marked up. They will be billed as estimated or billed at cost.


	ADP7ABF.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	Workplan Update 2020.pdf
	2020




